

2025–2026 Staff Draft Budget Justification

October 30, 2024

2025-2026 Staff Draft Budget Justification



[THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]





Table of Contents

INTRODUCTION AND STRATEGIC CONTEXT	5
About the NCUA Statutory Authority Mission, Goals, and Strategy The NCUA's Annual Budget Process	5 6
THE NCUA BUDGET IN BRIEF	8
Proposed 2025 and 2026 Budgets Proposed 2025 Operating Budget: \$419.3 million Proposed 2025 Capital Budget: \$8.2 million Proposed 2025 Share Insurance Fund Administrative Expenses: \$5.5 million	
KEY THEMES OF THE PROPOSED 2025–2026 BUDGET	14
Overview Cybersecurity Examination Workforce Support for Small Credit Unions and Minority Depository Institutions Fair Lending and Consumer Financial Protection Chartering Investments IT Enhancements: MERIT and Cloud Migration NCUA Organizational Changes	
OPERATING BUDGET	20
Overview Operating Budget Categories	
CAPITAL BUDGET	29
Overview Summary of Capital Projects	
SHARE INSURANCE FUND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES BUDGET	33
Overview Budget Requirements and Description	
FINANCING THE NCUA'S PROGRAMS	36
Overview Overhead Transfer Rate Operating Fee	37
APPENDIX A: SUPPLEMENTAL BUDGET INFORMATION	43



Budget by Strategic Goal	
Office Budget Summary	
OFFICE BUDGETS	
APPENDIX B: CAPITAL PROJECTS	
APPENDIX C: GLOSSARY OF TERMS AND ACRONYMS	70
AFFEINDIA C. GLOSSANT OF TERINIS AIND ACRUNTIVIS	



Introduction and Strategic Context

About the NCUA

Credit unions have provided financial services to their members for more than 100 years. Credit unions are not-for-profit financial cooperatives created to serve a membership with a common bond.

In 1970, the U.S. Congress established the NCUA as an independent federal agency to regulate, charter, and supervise federal credit unions. The NCUA operates and manages the National Credit Union Share Insurance Fund (Share Insurance Fund) with the backing of the full faith and credit of the United States, insuring the deposits of the account holders in all federal credit unions and most state-chartered credit unions.

As of June 30, 2024, the NCUA regulates and supervises 4,533 federally insured credit unions, which have approximately 141 million members and more than \$2.3 trillion in assets across all states and U.S. territories.¹

Statutory Authority

Pursuant to the Federal Credit Union Act, authority for NCUA management is vested in the NCUA Board. The Board determines the resources needed for carrying out the NCUA's responsibilities under the Act.² The Board is authorized to expend such funds and perform such other functions or acts as it deems necessary or appropriate, per the rules, regulations, or policies it establishes.³

Upon determination of the budgeted annual expenses for the agency's operations, the Board determines a fee schedule to assess federal credit unions. The Board considers federal credit unions' ability to pay such a fee and the necessity of the expenses the NCUA will incur in carrying out its responsibilities in connection with federal credit unions.⁴ In December 2023, the Board approved a notice with changes to its methodology for determining the operating fees due from federal credit unions.⁵

Pursuant to the law, the NCUA deposits fees collected are deposited in the agency's Operating Fund at the Treasury of the United States, and those fees are expended by the Board to defray the cost of carrying out the agency's operations, including the examination and supervision of federal credit unions.⁶ Per its authority to use the Share Insurance Fund to carry out its insurance-related responsibilities, the Board approved an Overhead Transfer Rate (OTR) methodology and authorized the Office of the Chief Financial Officer to

¹ Source: NCUA quarterly call report data, second quarter 2024.

² See 12 United States Code (U.S.C.) 1752a(a).

³ See 12 U.S.C. 1766(i)(2).

⁴ See 12 U.S.C. 1755(a)-(b).

⁵ See <u>https://www.federalregister.gov/d/2023-28303</u>

⁶ See 12 U.S.C. 1755(d).



transfer resources from the Share Insurance Fund to the Operating Fund to account for insurance-related expenses.⁷

Mission, Goals, and Strategy

The proposed budget for 2025–2026 supports the NCUA's fourth year implementing its <u>2022–2026 Strategic</u> <u>Plan</u>. Throughout 2025 and 2026, the agency will continue fulfilling its mission of "protecting the system of cooperative credit and its member-owners through effective chartering, supervision, regulation, and insurance." The agency's three strategic goals are:

- Ensure a safe, sound, and viable system of cooperative credit that protects consumers.
- Improve the financial well-being of individuals and communities through access to affordable and equitable financial products and services.
- Maximize organizational performance to enable mission success.

The NCUA's strategic plan is the foundation for the agency's performance management and resource allocation processes. The annual performance plan functions as the agency's operational plan for each calendar year. It outlines the annual or short-term objectives, strategies, and corresponding performance goals and activities that contribute to the accomplishment of the agency's strategic goals. The NCUA budget provides the resources necessary for the agency to implement its strategic priorities and related programs and activities, to identify key challenges facing the credit union industry, and to leverage agency strengths to help credit unions address those challenges.

Appendix A provides additional information about how the budget aligns to the NCUA's strategic goals.

The NCUA's Annual Budget Process

Each regional and central office director at the NCUA develops an initial budget request identifying the resources necessary for their office to support the agency's mission, goals, and objectives. These budgets are developed to ensure requirements are individually justified and remain consistent with the agency's overall strategic framework. This effort also includes a field-level review of every federally insured credit union to estimate the workload to carry out credit union examinations in the forthcoming year, which is translated into the cost of the staff and associated expenses necessary to meet the agency's safety and soundness goals. In addition to this workload analysis, each NCUA office estimates its fixed and recurring expenses, such as for employee travel, rental payments for leased property, operations and maintenance for owned facilities or equipment, supplies, telecommunications services, major capital investments, and other administrative and contracted services costs.

The Office of the Chief Financial Officer presents draft budgets to the public on the agency's website and in the Federal Register as part of the NCUA Board's commitment to transparency in the agency's budgeting processes. The Board also holds a public briefing about the draft budget and facilitates dialog between public

⁷ See 12 U.S.C. 1783(a).



stakeholders and NCUA staff to develop a common understanding of the agency's resource needs. The NCUA is the only Financial Institutions Reform, Recovery, and Enforcement Act agency that releases such a detailed draft budget and solicits public comments on it.

The NCUA Board reviews the comments from the public about the draft budget and makes revisions in response to stakeholder views, individual Board office priorities, and changing economic conditions. The Board then approves the final budget levels and the associated OTR and the operating fees paid by credit unions to finance the agency's programs.



The NCUA Budget in Brief

Proposed 2025 and 2026 Budgets

The NCUA 2022–2026 Strategic Plan sets forth the agency's goals and objectives that drive the agency's resource needs and allocations. The agency's annual budgets provide the resources to execute the strategic plan, to implement important initiatives, and to undertake the NCUA's major programs: examination and supervision, insurance, credit union development, consumer financial protection, and asset management.⁸

			2025-20	26 NC	UA BUDGE	T RESOU	RCES					
Budget	2024 Board- Approved Budget	2025 Requested Budget**	Change (2024-2025)	Percent Change (2024- 2025)	2026 Requested Budget	Change (2025-2026)	Percent Change (2025- 2026)	2024* Positions	2025* Positions	2026* Positions	Posi Chai (24– 25)	nge
Operating Budget	\$374,494,000	\$419,325,000	\$ 44,831,000	12.0%	\$450,607,000	\$ 31,282,000	7.5%	1,247	1,261	1,272	14	11
Capital Budget	\$6,189,000	\$8,209,000	\$ 2,020,000	32.6%	\$12,500,000	\$ 4,291,000	52.3%		1	-	-	
Share Insurance Fund Admin. Budget	\$5,142,000	\$5,500,000	\$ 358,000	7.0%	\$5,366,000	\$ (134,000)	-2.4%	-	-	-	-	-
Total**	\$385,825,000	\$433,034,000	\$47,209,000	12.2%	\$468,473,000	\$35,439,000	8.2%	1,247	1,261	1,272	14	11

* All position levels exclude positions funded by the Central Liquidity Facility (CLF).

** 2025 Requested Budget is \$0.3 million lower than the 2025 funding level approved by the NCUA Board as part of the two-year 2024–2025 Budget.

The NCUA's 2025–2026 staff draft budget justification includes three separate budgets: the Operating Budget, the Capital Budget, and the Share Insurance Fund Administrative Expenses Budget. Combined, these three budgets total \$433.0 million for 2025, which is \$0.3 million *lower* than the \$433.3 million 2025 funding level approved by the NCUA Board as part of the two-year 2024–2025 budget.

Three significant factors, when combined, account for most of the 12.2 percent increase in the total budget between 2024 and 2025:

1. An increase of \$25.9 million in funding for contracted services for 2025 compared to 2024. Of this amount, approximately \$18.0 million results from a lower 2024 surplus carried over as part of the 2025 budget when compared to the surplus carried over from 2023 as part of the 2024 budget. Of the residual \$7.9 million increase for contracted services, much of the additional funding will address

⁸ Budget information presented in this document excludes funding for the CLF, which has its own budget reviewed and decided upon separately by the CLF Board.



new and evolving operational risks such as cybersecurity threats and for tools used to identify and resolve credit union system risk concerns such as interest rate risk, credit risk, and industry concentration risk. Growth in the contracted services budget category also results from new operations and maintenance costs for recently delivered capital investments. Other increased costs include general price inflation for core agency business operation systems such as accounting and payroll processing and various other recurring support costs.

- 2. An increase of \$19.5 million for current employee compensation in 2025 compared to 2024. This increase accounts for merit pay raises for the NCUA's employees as required by the Collective Bargaining Agreement and expected inflationary cost increases for employee benefits.
- 3. A proposed increase of 14 positions compared to 2024, which equates to a headcount increase of 10 positions and four positions approved by the NCUA Board in the 2024 budget for 2025. Of the 10 positions recommended in the staff draft budget, eight are new positions and the remaining two are existing positions currently unfunded in the 2024 budget.⁹ Explanations for each of the proposed new positions are included later in this document.

Proposed 2025 Operating Budget: \$419.3 million

The following chart presents the major categories of spending supported by the proposed 2025 Operating Budget.



Note: Minor rounding differences may occur in totals.

⁹ These positions are also known as "overhire" positions and are funded by surplus pay and benefits budgets that result from vacancies.



As shown in the following chart, the relative size of the NCUA budget (dotted line) has generally decreased when compared to balance sheets at federally insured credit unions (FICU, solid line).



- •••• NCUA Budget per Million \$ of FICU Assets (left scale)*
- Credit Union System Assets in \$ Trillions (right scale)

Source: NCUA Annual Budgets, Call Reports, FDIC, OCC, and Federal Reserve financial reports

* Budget per million \$ of FICU assets is calculated as the fiscal year's budget divided by the previous year's end-of-year assets (e.g., 2025 draft budget/projected FICU assets as of fourth quarter 2024).

Proposed 2026 Operating Budget: \$450.6 million

The Operating Budget estimate for 2026 is \$450.6 million and includes 11 additional positions compared to the 2025 level.



Proposed 2025 Operating Budget Summary

(Dollars in Millions)	Budget	Change from 2024 Budget	Percent Change ¹⁰	Description
2025 Operating Budget	\$419.3	↑ \$44.8	+ 12.0%	
Total Staffing (positions)	1,261	↑ 14	+ 1.1%	The 2025 position level increases by 14 positions from 1,247 authorized by the Board in 2024. ¹¹
Budget Category				
Pay & Benefits	\$312.3	↑ \$19.5	+ 6.7%	The pay and benefits adjustment includes funding for the proposed staffing increase of 14 positions, net, for critical areas necessary to operate as an effective federal financial regulator capable of addressing emerging issues. Additionally, the increase in pay and benefits includes merit and locality pay changes anticipated for 2025.
Travel	\$22.1	↑ \$2.1	+ 10.5%	The travel budget increases by \$2.1 million in 2025 compared to 2024.
Rent, Communications, & Utilities	\$6.8	↓ \$0.3	- 4.3%	Rent, communications, and utilities budgets pay for essential workspace, telecommunications, data capacity, and network support. The 2025 increase results primarily from new costs for rent and data services for a disaster recovery site.
Administrative Expenses	\$5.1	↓ \$2.4	- 31.8%	Administrative expenses primarily support operational requirements, relocation expenses, and employee supplies.
Contracted Services	\$73.0	↑ \$25.9	+ 55.1%	Contracted services reflect costs for products and services acquired from the commercial marketplace and include mission-critical services, such as information technology (IT) acquisitions and support services, accounting and auditing services, and specialized subject matter expertise. Most of the increase in this category results from an \$18.0 million difference in budget surplus from prior years. The increase also includes funding to address new and evolving risks, operations and maintenance recently delivered capital investments, and contractual price inflation for business systems and services. Starting in 2025, the contracted services category also reflects fees paid by NCUA to the Federal Financial Institutions Examination Council (FFIEC).

¹⁰ Percent change is based on exact amounts shown on page 20.

¹¹ Total staffing levels do not include five positions funded by the CLF.



Proposed 2026 Operating Budget Summary

(Dollars in Millions)	Budget	Change from 2025 Budget	Percent Change ¹²	Description
2026 Operating Budget	\$450.6	↑ \$31.3	+ 7.5%	
Total Staffing (positions)	1,272	↑ 11	+ 0.9%	The 2026 position level increases by 11 positions from 1,261 recommended for 2025.
Budget Category				
Pay & Benefits	\$329.2	↑ \$16.9	+ 5.4%	The pay and benefits budget is projected to increase in 2026 to pay for compensation adjustments for on-board employees and for the cost of new staff hired in 2025 and 2026.
Travel	\$24.2	↑ \$2.1	+ 9.5%	Travel costs are projected to increase due to price inflation and a national training conference planned for NCUA employees in 2026.
Rent, Communications, & Utilities	\$7.9	↑ \$1.1	+ 15.4%	Rent, communications, and utilities costs are projected to increase modestly to reflect a national training conference planned for NCUA employees in 2026.
Administrative Expenses	\$5.9	↑ \$0.8	+ 14.7%	Administrative expenses are projected to increase slightly to reflect a national training conference planned for NCUA employees in 2026.
Contracted Services	\$83.5	↑ \$10.5	+ 14.4%	Contracted services reflect costs for products and services acquired from the commercial marketplace. The proposed 2025 budget for contracted services includes an offset of \$5 million from estimated prior-year budget surpluses, which is not expected to be available again in 2026.

¹² Percent change is based on exact amounts shown on page 20.



Proposed 2025 Capital Budget: \$8.2 million

The proposed 2025 Capital Budget is \$2.0 million higher than the 2024 Board-approved budget.

The Capital Budget supports the NCUA's ongoing effort to modernize its IT infrastructure and applications. Funding in the Capital Budget for upgrades to or replacement of obsolete IT systems is higher in 2025 than in 2024 and includes an increase in capital investment for cyclical system updates to the Modern Examination and Risk Identification Tool (MERIT) examination system. Other IT investments in the proposed 2025 Capital Budget include funds to ensure that agency systems comply with evolving cybersecurity requirements required of all federal agencies, enhancements to agency information security, investments to begin transitioning legacy hardware to a cloud-based storage environment, and various hardware investments to refresh agency networks and ensure staff have the tools necessary to achieve the agency's mission.

The Capital Budget also includes \$480,000 for NCUA facility maintenance and improvements.

Proposed 2025 Share Insurance Fund Administrative Expenses: \$5.5 million

The proposed 2025 Share Insurance Fund Administrative Expenses Budget is \$0.4 million higher than the 2024 Board-approved budget. The Share Insurance Fund Administrative Expenses Budget funds the tools and technology used by the Office of National Examinations and Supervision (ONES) to oversee credit union-run stress testing for the largest credit unions, travel for state examiners attending NCUA-sponsored training, audit support for the Share Insurance Fund's financial statements, and certain insurance-related expenses for Asset Management and Assistance Center (AMAC) operations.



Key Themes of the Proposed 2025–2026 Budget

Overview

The proposed 2025–2026 budget includes funding for the NCUA to increase staffing in critical areas necessary to operate as an effective federal financial regulator capable of addressing emerging issues and responding to changes in economic conditions that may impact the credit union system.

The percentage of insured shares in credit unions with composite Capital adequacy, Asset quality, Management, Earnings, Liquidity risk, and Sensitivity to market risk (CAMELS) ratings 1 and 2 has decreased each quarter since December 2021.¹³ Between the reporting periods of December 31, 2021, and June 30, 2024, credit unions with composite CAMELS 4 and 5 ratings and total assets greater than \$500 million increased from 2 to 9, while these credit unions' insured shares increased from \$4.4 billion to \$13.8 billion—an increase of 214 percent. During the same period, credit unions with composite CAMELS 3 ratings and assets greater than \$500 million increased from 15 to 66, and their insured shares increased from \$11.3 billion to \$127.0 billion—an increase of 1,024 percent. Under the agency's rules, credit unions with total assets greater than \$500 million are considered complex. Liquidations of such complex credit unions would cause greater losses for the Share Insurance Fund than non-complex credit unions.

The NCUA must have the necessary resources to continue to monitor credit union performance and mitigate risks at these complex credit unions and all other non-complex credit unions through the examination process, offsite monitoring, and tailored supervision, consistent with its mission.

The NCUA employees are the agency's most valuable resource for achieving its mission. The agency is committed to maintaining a workforce with integrity, accountability, transparency, inclusion, and proficiency.¹⁴ The NCUA will continue investing in its workforce through training and development, ensuring employees have the skills they need to work effectively. These investments will also facilitate the agency's succession planning as it undertakes a generational leadership shift as the Baby Boom cohort retires.

The proposed 2025–2026 budget includes investments across a range of NCUA priorities, including:

- Ensuring robust cybersecurity in the credit union system and at the agency.
- Continuing to strengthen and mature analytic capabilities and capacity in the areas of fraud and antimoney laundering, quantitative analytics and stress testing, and climate-related financial risk.

¹³ The NCUA's composite CAMELS rating consists of an assessment of a credit union's Capital adequacy, Asset quality, Management, Earnings, Liquidity risk, and Sensitivity to market risk. The CAMELS rating system is designed to consider and reflect all significant financial, operational and management factors field staff assess in their valuation of credit unions' performance and risk profiles. CAMELS ratings range from 1 to 5, with 1 being the best rating. Credit unions with a composite CAMELS rating of 3 exhibit some degree of supervisory concern in one or more components. CAMELS 4 credit unions generally exhibit unsafe or unsound practices, and CAMELS 5 institutions demonstrate extremely unsafe or unsound practices and conditions. The NCUA collectively refers to CAMELS 4 and 5 credit unions as "troubled credit unions."

¹⁴ See <u>https://ncua.gov/files/agenda-items/strategic-plan-20220317.pdf</u>, page 6.



- Recalibrating examination and supervisory oversight over credit unions based on a prioritization of the risks presented to the system.
- Providing program and staff resources to increase assistance to small credit unions and credit unions designated as minority depository institutions (MDIs).
- Expanding the resources allocated to the NCUA's examination of credit unions' compliance with consumer financial protection laws and regulations.
- Investing in information technology systems and infrastructure to bolster the NCUA's supervisory capabilities.

The efficiency and effectiveness of the agency's workforce depends upon the availability of modern analytical tools and the resiliency of the NCUA's information technology systems. The NCUA is committed to implementing its new technology responsibly and delivering secure, reliable, and innovative solutions. The investments funded in the NCUA's Capital Budget will provide the tools and technology the workforce needs to achieve the NCUA mission.

Cybersecurity

The NCUA's cybersecurity program focuses on two main efforts: supervision of credit union cybersecurity programs and protection of the agency's systems, assets, data, and mission capabilities.

Cyberattacks continue to pose significant and growing risks to all organizations. The NCUA places credit union cybersecurity as a top enterprise and supervisory priority because of continued attacks on the nation's financial sector and the broader national critical infrastructure.

Supervision of Credit Union Cybersecurity

The NCUA engages in interagency cybersecurity preparedness as a member of the FFIEC and of the Financial and Banking Information Infrastructure Committee. The NCUA monitors cyber threats identified by federal and non-federal sources and shares relevant information about them with the credit union industry and financial sector partners.

The NCUA maintains a team within the Office of Examination and Insurance dedicated to developing and maintaining supervisory policies, procedures, and tools and examiner training for cybersecurity. The regions and the ONES employ highly trained regional information security specialists for information security examinations and supervision of credit unions.

All credit unions will periodically receive an information security examination as part of the agency's new Information Security Examination program (ISE). The ISE uses a risk-focused approach to examine credit unions' information security, providing examiners flexibility to focus on areas of material current or potential risk relevant to each credit union's unique business model. The objectives of an information security examination include:

• Evaluating management's ability to recognize, assess, monitor, and manage information systems and technology-related risks.



- Assessing whether the credit union has sufficient expertise to adequately plan, direct, and manage information systems and technology operations.
- Determining whether the board of directors has adopted and implemented adequate information systems and technology-related policies and procedures.¹⁵
- Evaluating the adequacy of internal information systems and technology controls and oversight to safeguard member information.

The NCUA built and maintains the Automated Cybersecurity Evaluation Toolbox (ACET) to help credit unions voluntarily assess their level of cybersecurity preparedness. The tool incorporates appropriate cybersecurity standards and practices established for financial institutions. The tool maps each of its declarative statements to the practices found in the *FFIEC Information Technology Examination Handbook*, regulatory guidance, and leading industry standards like the National Institute of Standards and Technology's (NIST) Cybersecurity Framework. The ACET also provides a plain-language explanation and references for each of the statements included within the assessment.

Enhanced and continuing examiner training related to information security and evolving cyber risks is planned for 2025.

Protection of the Agency's Information and Systems

The NCUA's approach to agency cybersecurity is based on requirements established by federal statute such as the Federal Information Security Management and Federal Information Security Modernization Act (FISMA), and government-wide policy such as the NIST's Cybersecurity Framework, and Executive Order (EO) 14028, *Improving the Nation's Cybersecurity*. Based upon the most recent FISMA reporting metrics, the NCUA earned a Level 4 maturity rating for its information security program. This is the highest rating the NCUA has earned to date and demonstrates the agency's commitment a strong cybersecurity posture that mitigates risk and protects sensitive data. The proposed 2025 budget includes over \$22 million for the cost of compliance with and implementation of these requirements, of which \$3.2 million is budgeted for capital investments. Many government cybersecurity requirements are not necessarily expected of non-governmental entities; however, as a federal agency the NCUA must carry them out.

Examination Workforce

In 2021, a cross-agency working group at the NCUA conducted an internal review to determine the appropriate level of specialist positions required to ensure compliance with the Bank Secrecy Act (BSA) and consumer financial protection laws and regulations. The review evaluated staffing needs for three potential regional specialist groups in the areas of electronic payment systems, consumer compliance, and the BSA. Unlike other specialist areas where credit union asset size is a reasonable basis for allocating supervisory resources, BSA and consumer compliance risks are not necessarily concentrated in a particular asset group.

¹⁵ See <u>https://ncua.gov/regulation-supervision/letters-credit-unions-other-guidance/board-director-engagement-cybersecurity-oversight</u>



Since this review, the NCUA added specialist positions to each of the regions in two separate phases. These new specialist positions were offset by a reduction in general examiner positions throughout the regions. These positions are now fully annualized in the 2025 budget and no new specialist positions are proposed in the 2025 budget. The proposed 2025 budget recommends a net reduction of 10 positions across the NCUA's three regions. The draft budget is based on certain adjustments to the examination program that result in a net decrease in the staff time required to carry out the examination program. These changes would provide incentives for federally insured credit unions with assets between \$1 billion and \$10 billion to remain very sound. In return, sound practices at credit unions would allow the regions more flexibility to work with state regulators on coordinating joint examinations and reduce the time between exams for certain federal credit unions whose practices and management necessitate closer scrutiny. These changes would also result in a further cycle-time extension between exams for well-managed and well-capitalized smaller and mid-sized credit unions.

Support for Small Credit Unions and Minority Depository Institutions

Small credit unions with less than \$100 million in assets and MDIs are uniquely positioned to improve financial inclusion by offering their communities access to safe, fair, and affordable credit and other services. The NCUA's Small Credit Union and MDI Support Program is designed to support and preserve these credit unions. This program provides dedicated resource hours for field staff to conduct this important work, and the proposed 2025 budget continues to support this important effort.

Program assistance focuses on identifying available resources, providing training and guidance, and supporting credit union management in their efforts to address operational matters. Additional benefits of the program include:

- Building greater awareness of the unique needs of small credit unions and MDIs and their role serving underserved communities.
- Expanding opportunities for these credit unions to receive support through NCUA grants, training, and other initiatives.
- Furthering partnerships with organizations and industry mentors that can support small credit unions and MDIs.

Fair Lending and Consumer Financial Protection

The NCUA's consumer financial protection program supports the agency's statutory responsibility and strategic goal of ensuring a safe, sound, and viable system of cooperative credit that protects consumers. Within the division of fair lending supervision, NCUA staff conduct targeted fair lending examinations at federal credit unions to assess compliance with federal fair lending laws and regulations. These reviews are critical to identifying discriminatory lending patterns or practices and to reducing barriers to economic equity. Past examinations conducted by NCUA examiners have identified patterns or practices of discrimination violations, illegal race-based redlining, indirect lending pricing concerns, systemic Home Mortgage Disclosure Act violations, Regulation B notification and government monitoring information



violations, and numerous instances of inadequate fair lending compliance management systems, including those related to discrimination based on age and marital status.

In 2024, the NCUA joined the other Federal Financial Institution Examination Council agencies to issue a statement of examination principles related to valuation discrimination and bias in residential real estate lending. The staff draft budget includes funding for the current division of fair lending supervision and for one new program officer who will help to develop Home Mortgage Disclosure Act analyses and examinations, oversee the annual fair lending examination selection process through outlier analysis, and fulfill fair lending speaking and Freedom of Information Act requests submitted by the public.

The agency is also engaged in a project to develop an expanded consumer compliance examination and enforcement program. That project will develop and be implemented over the course of several years.

Chartering Investments

Credit unions are an important part of the financial services industry and can play a key role in helping families achieve financial freedom by building generational wealth, aiding entrepreneurs in starting a business, and helping to create jobs and strengthen communities. To extend financial services to more individuals and communities, the 2025 capital budget supports a multi-year process automation project to implement an external facing portal that will make it easier for organizing groups to submit new charter applications. When this project is complete, organizing groups will be able to upload forms and supporting files and track the status of their submissions through an intuitive, user-friendly interface, significantly reducing the time to process these requests.

IT Enhancements: MERIT and Cloud Migration

Two information technology investments in the 2025 budget support efforts to create cost efficiencies and avoid cost escalation in future years.

The NCUA recompeted the operations and maintenance contract for NCUA's examination platform in 2024. The new contract reduced the estimated cost of core MERIT Operations and Maintenance (O&M) support activities by \$1.7 million for the 2025 operating budget when compared to the cost of the previous support vendor.

Migrating to a cloud computing environment offers significant advantages by enhancing efficiencies and improving security. By moving IT services from physical datacenters to cloud service providers, the NCUA can lower the risk and expense of maintaining physical infrastructure such as servers, storage, and networking equipment. Cloud infrastructure also enables faster and more efficient deployment of new services and system upgrades. This scalability leads to greater operational flexibility, reducing the time and cost of managing information technology operations. Furthermore, cloud service providers offer advanced cybersecurity measures, ensuring that data is protected with the latest encryption and security standards, enhancing the reliability and security of the NCUA's information technology environment. By leveraging cloud services, the NCUA can focus its resources on innovation and mission-critical tasks, rather than on costly and resource-intensive management of physical infrastructure.



NCUA Organizational Changes

The staff draft budget proposes a new Office of the Executive Secretary, which is a common function in many other federal agencies. The new office will centralize responsibility for the NCUA's policy review and decision-making processes, coordinate the clearance and submission of all policy documents to the Chairman and the NCUA Board, as appropriate, for review and approval, and facilitate discussions between the NCUA's program offices to align appropriate policies, among other things. Policy documents include regulations, recommendation memos, action memos, briefing memos, responses to correspondence, reports to Congress, and other policy documents. Appendix A includes a separate table illustrating the budget for the proposed Office of the Executive Secretary.



Operating Budget

Overview

The NCUA Operating Budget provides the resources required for the agency to conduct activities prescribed by the Federal Credit Union Act. These mandates include: 1) chartering new federal credit unions; 2) approving field of membership applications of federal credit unions; 3) promulgating regulations and providing guidance; 4) performing regulatory compliance and safety and soundness examinations; 5) implementing and administering enforcement actions, such as prohibition orders, orders to cease and desist, orders of conservatorship and orders of liquidation; and 6) administering the Share Insurance Fund. The NCUA must also implement mandates required by other statutes including those related to BSA compliance, consumer financial protection, and diversity, equity, and inclusion.

Operating Budget Categories

	2025	- 2	026 NCUA	OPERATING	BUDGET	รเ	JMMARY		
Budget Cost Category	2024 Board Approved Budget	20	25 Requested Budget	2024-2025 Change	Change Percent	20	26 Requested Budget	2025-2026 Change	Change Percent
Employee compensation	\$ 292,783,000	\$	312,275,000	19,492,000	6.7%	\$	329,172,000	16,897,000	5.4%
Salaries	\$ 202,972,000	\$	217,680,000	14,708,000	7.2%	\$	230,427,000	12,747,000	5.9%
Benefits	\$ 89,811,000	\$	94,595,000	4,784,000	5.3%	\$	98,745,000	4,150,000	4.4%
Travel	\$ 20,012,000	\$	22,105,000	2,093,000	10.5%	\$	24,210,000	2,105,000	9.5%
Rent /Comm/Utilities	\$ 7,136,000	\$	6,832,000	(304,000)	-4.3%	\$	7,882,000	1,050,000	15.4%
Administrative	\$ 7,494,000	\$	5,109,000	(2,385,000)	-31.8%	\$	5,859,000	750,000	14.7%
Contracted Services	\$ 47,069,000	\$	73,004,000	25,935,000	55.1%	\$	83,484,000	10,480,000	14.4%
Total	\$ 374,494,000	\$	419,325,000	44,831,000	12.0%	\$	450,607,000	31,282,000	7.5%

There are five major expenditure categories in the Operating Budget. This section explains how these expenditures support the NCUA's operations and presents an overview of the Operating Budget.

Pay and Benefits. Pay and benefits increase by \$19.5 million in 2025, or 6.7 percent compared to 2024, for a total of \$312.3 million. Pay and benefits costs make up approximately 74.5 percent of the annual NCUA Operating Budget. There are four primary drivers of increased costs in 2025 for the pay and benefits category:

• Merit and locality pay increases for the NCUA's employees are paid per the agency's Collective Bargaining Agreement (CBA) and its merit-based pay system.



- Contributions for employee retirement to the Federal Employee Retirement System (FERS), which are set by the U.S. Office of Personnel Management (OPM) based on actuarial estimates and cannot be negotiated or changed by the NCUA. The mandatory FERS contribution rate increases total NCUA benefits costs by 2.7 percent in 2025 compared to 2024. OPM's current assumptions for actuarial valuation of FERS remain unchanged in 2025 but remain a cost driver for the agency's pay and benefits growth. Because the NCUA must contribute 18.4 percent of employee salaries to the retirement fund in 2025, the estimated impact on the NCUA budget is an increase of approximately \$2.5 million in mandatory payments.
- Contributions for employee health insurance are also set by OPM. This insurance contribution increases total NCUA benefits costs by 1.3 percent in 2025 compared to 2024. The annual OPM estimate for the 2025 government share of the Federal Employees Health Benefits Program (FEHBP) premiums is expected to be released in October 2024, and the budget will be updated if there are material changes to FEHBP costs estimates.
- The employee salary and benefits category includes costs associated with other mandatory employer contributions such as Social Security, Medicare, transportation subsidies, unemployment, and workers' compensation. The limit on employee earnings subject to Social Security taxes increased in 2025 and applies to all employers in the United States. The projected additional employer Social Security contributions that result from this increase account for approximately one percent of the total adjustment to employee salaries.

Attracting a well-qualified workforce requires the agency to pay competitive salaries. In 2025, the NCUA's compensation levels will continue to "maintain comparability with other federal bank regulatory agencies" as required by the Federal Credit Union Act.¹⁶ More than 85 percent of the NCUA workforce has earned a bachelor's degree or higher, compared to approximately 35 percent of the private-sector workforce.

The pay and benefits budget includes all employee pay raises for 2025, such as merit and locality increases consistent with the CBA in place for 2024, and those for promotions, reassignments, and other changes, as described below. Consistent with other federal pay systems, the NCUA's compensation includes base pay and locality pay components.

The proposed 2025 Operating Budget supports a total agency staffing level of 1,261 positions.¹⁷ This is a net increase of 14 positions, or 1.1 percent, compared to the agency's 2024 staffing level. The net increase includes 12 new positions, four of which were approved by the NCUA Board in the 2024 budget for 2025 and incorporates into the 2025 budget two existing positions currently unfunded in the 2024 budget. The first-year cost of the 12 net new positions for 2025 is estimated to be approximately \$1.9 million. The cost for 2025 of the two existing positions currently unfunded is estimated to be approximately \$0.7 million.

¹⁶ The Federal Credit Union Act states that, "In setting and adjusting the total amount of compensation and benefits for employees of the Board, the Board shall seek to maintain comparability with other federal bank regulatory agencies." *See* 12 U.S.C. 1766(j)(2).

¹⁷ Does not include five positions assigned to the CLF.



The proposed 2025–2026 draft budget includes funding for the NCUA to increase permanent staffing in critical areas necessary to operate more effectively and address emerging risks. The staffing levels proposed for 2025 also reflect the resource requirements that support the NCUA's continued efforts to ensure its examination processes keep pace with the growing scale and complexity of the credit union system while the agency enhances the efficiency and effectiveness of its supervisory efforts.



The following chart illustrates the NCUA's staffing levels in recent years.

Note: Total NCUA staffing excludes positions funded by the CLF.

The proposed changes for the NCUA's 2025 staffing level include:

- Reducing the number of generalist examiners by a net of eight positions across the NCUA's three regional offices, including the reduction of one supervisory examiner.
- Adding two new Division of Supervision Director positions (one each in the Eastern and Western regions) while simultaneously reducing the number of regional Division of Supervision Deputy Director positions by four positions. The net change in regional staff is a reduction of two positions.
- Creating a new Office of the Executive Secretary with two dedicated staff positions authorized for 2025 and a third position for 2026. This office will centralize responsibility for coordinating the review of documents, related decision-making processes, and the clearance and submission of all documents to the NCUA Board members, as appropriate.



- Increasing ONES by three positions. The three new positions include a supervisor for the capital planning and stress testing division, a financial data analyst, and a new executive position to lead the financial risk management team. Additionally, three positions are recommended for 2026: one national credit union examiner, one national lending specialist, and one national payment systems officer.
- Increasing the Office of Business Innovation by two positions. The new positions include one artificial intelligence (AI) officer and one business innovation officer. Additionally, two new AI officers are recommended for 2026.
- Adding one new senior Equal Employment Opportunity (EEO) specialist in the Office of Minority and Women Inclusion.
- Increasing the Office of Consumer Financial Protection (OCFP) by three positions. The new positions include one consumer affairs specialist, one fair lending program officer, and a new division director in 2025.
- Increasing the Office of Examination and Insurance by three positions. The new positions include two new fraud officers and one climate financial risk officer in 2025. Additionally, one new systems officer is recommended for 2026.
- Increasing the Office of External Affairs and Communications by three positions. The new positions include one section 508 compliance manager and two division directors in 2025. Additionally, two new positions are recommended for 2026. These include one technical writer/editor and one stakeholder relations specialist.
- Funding two positions previously unfunded but authorized within the total NCUA staffing plan. These positions are both within the Office of Human Resources.

The proposed 2026 budget for pay and benefits is estimated at \$329.2 million, a \$16.9 million increase from the 2025 level. Included within this total is the full-year cost impact of new positions proposed for 2025 (approximately \$4 million), \$1.6 million for 11 new positions (three in ONES, two in the Office of Business Innovation, two in the Office of General Counsel, two in the Office of External Affairs and Communications, one in the Office of the Executive Secretary, and one in the Office of Examination and Insurance). The 2026 budget for pay and benefits also includes projected merit and locality pay increases consistent with recent compensation agreements (approximately \$8.8 million), and associated increases in benefits for all employees (approximately \$2.5 million).

Travel. The proposed travel budget increases by \$2.1 million, or 10.5 percent, compared to 2024, for a total of \$22.1 million. The travel cost category includes expenses for employees' airfare, lodging, meals, auto rentals, reimbursements for privately owned vehicle usage, and other travel-related expenses. These are necessary expenses for examiners' onsite work in credit unions. Close to two-thirds of the NCUA's workforce is comprised of field staff who spend part of their time traveling to conduct the examination and supervision program. The NCUA staff also travel for routine and specialized training and other work assignments.

During the COVID-19 pandemic, the NCUA and its employees transitioned to an offsite examination posture, developing new procedures and processes to continue examination and supervisory work. In 2025, the NCUA will continue to conduct portions of examinations offsite, which is expected to constrain the



growth of future travel budgets. Nevertheless, per trip costs have increased in recent years due to price inflation across the U.S. economy. Despite the projected growth in travel expenses for 2025, the total budget for travel is approximately \$4.7 million, or 17.4 percent, below the pre-pandemic 2019 travel budget of \$26.8 million.

The proposed 2026 budget for travel is estimated at \$24.2 million, a 9.5 percent increase compared to the 2025 level. This budget level reflects an expectation for continued travel-related cost inflation and travel to support a national training conference planned for 2026.

Rent, Communications, and Utilities. The proposed budget for rent, communications, and utilities decreases by \$0.3 million in 2025, or 4.3 percent compared to 2024, for a budget of \$6.8 million. The 2025 decrease is largely driven by a one-time reduction in the first-year rent for the new Southern Region office lease.

Funding within this budget category pays for facilities-related costs, telecommunications services, data storage, and information technology network support. Telecommunications charges include leased data lines and data service subscriptions, Voice over Internet Protocol and mobile telephony, and other network charges. Facilities-related budgets pay for the cost of the office leases, utilities, rental of the disaster recovery and continuity of operations sites, meeting space rental for offsite events, and postage.

The proposed 2026 budget for the rent, communications, and utilities category is \$7.9 million, or a 15.4 percent increase compared to 2025. The full, second-year cost of the Southern Region office lease is the primary driver for this increase.

Administrative Expenses. The draft budget proposes a \$2.4 million decrease in administrative expenses for 2025, which is a reduction of 31.8 percent compared to 2024, for a budget of \$5.1 million. The 2025 decrease is driven almost entirely by reclassifying the \$2.4 million Federal Financial Institutions Examinations Council costs from this budget category to the contracted services budget category, which more accurately captures the nature of this spending.

Recurring costs in the administrative expenses category include employee relocation expenses, recruitment and advertising expenses, shipping, printing, subscriptions, examiner training and meeting supplies, office furniture, and employee supplies and materials. The NCUA pays relocation costs to employees who are competitively selected for a promotion or new job within the agency in a different geographic area than where they live.

The proposed 2026 budget for administrative expenses is \$5.9 million, an increase of \$0.8 million, or 14.7 percent increase from the level proposed in the 2025 budget. The costs associated with a planned agency-wide National Training Conference is the major contributor to the budget increase.

Contracted Services. The proposed budget for contracted services increases by \$25.9 million in 2025, or 55.1 percent compared to 2024, for a total budget of \$73.0 million.¹⁸ A significant portion of the growth in this budget results from the assumption that approximately \$18.0 million in 2024 contracted services funded

¹⁸ The total budget for Contracted Services in 2025 before offsets of prior year unspent funds is estimated to be \$78.0 million.



by carryover budget surplus from previous years will not be available for 2025. Since 2021, the NCUA has used unspent budget amounts from previous years to reduce its budget levels in the following year.

The remaining \$7.9 million of budgetary growth is driven by a combination of factors, including operations and maintenance costs for newly delivered capital projects, inflationary cost increases for contracted services, and additional analytic and operational tools necessary to address cybersecurity threats and growing complexity and risk in the credit union system.

Acquiring specific expertise or services from contract providers is often the most cost-effective way for the NCUA to accomplish its mission. Such services include critical mission support such as information technology equipment and software development, accounting and auditing services, and specialized subject matter expertise that enable staff to focus on executing core mission requirements. Most of the funding in the contracted services category supports the NCUA's supervision framework, including tools used to identify and address risk concerns such as interest rate risk, credit risk, and industry concentration risk.

Growth in the contracted services budget category also results from new operations and maintenance costs for deployed capital investment projects. Other costs include core NCUA business operation systems such as accounting and payroll processing, and various recurring costs, as described in the following seven major categories:

- Information Technology Operations and Maintenance (44.9 percent of contracted services)
 - IT network support services and help desk support
 - Contractor program and web support and network and equipment maintenance services
 - Administration of software products such as Microsoft Office, SharePoint, and audio-visual services
- Administrative Support and Other Services (22.2 percent of contracted services)
 - Examination and supervision program support
 - Technical support for examination and cybersecurity training programs
 - Equipment maintenance services
 - Legal services and other expert consulting support
 - FFIEC reimbursements
- IT Security (14.2 percent of contracted services)
 - Secure data storage and operations
 - Information security programs
 - Security system assessment services
- Accounting, Procurement, Payroll, and Human Resources Systems (5.2 percent of contracted services)
 - Accounting and procurement systems and support
 - Human resources, payroll, and employee services
 - EEO and diversity programs
- Training (5.0 percent of contracted services)
 - Technical and specialized training and professional development for staff
- Audit and Financial Management Support (4.6 percent of contracted services)



- Annual audit support services
- Material loss reviews
- Investigation support services
- Financial management support services
- Building Operations, Maintenance, and Security (3.9 percent of contracted services)
 - Headquarters facility operations and maintenance
 - Building security and continuity programs
 - Personnel security and administrative programs

The following chart illustrates the breakout of the seven categories for the total proposed 2025 contracted services budget of \$78.0 million, of which \$5.0 million is funded from prior year available balances.



Note: Minor rounding differences may occur in totals.

Major programs within the contracted services category include:

• **Training requirements for the examiner workforce.** The NCUA's most important resource is its highly educated, experienced, and skilled workforce. Staff must have the proper knowledge, skills, and abilities to perform assigned duties and meet emerging needs. Each year, examiners complete a wide range of training classes to ensure their skills and industry knowledge remain current, including in core areas such as capital markets, consumer compliance, and specialized lending. Major training deliverables for 2025 include examiner training development, including subject matter expert conferences, and planned leadership forums for all the NCUA's executives and managers. The



NCUA continues to control training costs with a blended schedule of both in-person and virtual sessions.

- **Information security program.** This NCUA program supports ongoing efforts to strengthen the agency's cybersecurity and ensure its compliance with the Federal Information Security Modernization Act and other standards for federal agencies.
- Agency financial management services, human resources technology support, and payroll services. The NCUA contracts for these back-office support services with the U.S. Department of Transportation's Enterprise Service Center and the General Services Administration. The NCUA's human resource system, also adopted by other federal agencies, is a shared solution that automates routine human resource tasks and improves time and attendance functionality.
- Audit. The NCUA's Office of the Inspector General (OIG) contracts with an accounting firm to conduct the annual audit of the agency's four permanent funds. The results of these audits are posted annually on the NCUA website and included as part of the agency's Annual Report.

A significant share of the budget for contracted services finances ongoing IT infrastructure support for the agency. The 2025 budget includes operations and maintenance of the MERIT system, which replaced the legacy Automated Integrated Regulatory Examination System (AIRES) in 2021. Several of the NCUA's other core information technology systems and processes also require contract support in 2025, which results in increased costs for contracted services, as described below.

Within the **Office of Chief Information Officer's** budget, an additional \$2.0 million compared to the 2024 budget level is required for:

- Implementation of the NCUA's Cybersecurity Supply Chain Risk Management tools, which help identify, assess, and mitigate risks to ensure integrity and security of products and services purchased by the agency. NIST standards require implementation of robust supply risk management procedures.
- IT software, infrastructure services, and operations and maintenance labor support for NCUA systems, including legacy applications.
- O&M associated with the agency's new onboarding and offboarding system, which is being designed to fulfill new personnel background investigation standards required by the Defense Counterintelligence and Security Agency.

The Asset Management Assistance Center's contracted services budget increases by \$1.1 million compared to the 2024 budget level. These funds will provide additional examination support for NCUA's field examiners and ensure sufficient surge resources are available to respond to emergent matters.

The **Office of External Affairs and Communication's** contracted services budget increases by \$688,000 compared to the 2024 budget level. These funds will provide for a new website hosting and services support.

Within the **Office of General Counsel**, the contracted services budget increases by \$470,000 compared to the 2024 budget level. This increase primarily relates to anticipated legal fees associated with agency consumer financial protection efforts.

Within the **Office of Business Innovation**, the contracted services budget increases by approximately \$331,000 compared to the 2024 budget level. These funds will provide contract support for the agency's



information system security processes and fund a survey administered by a third party about credit unions' examination experiences.

The proposed contracted services budget for 2026 is \$83.5 million. Excluding the \$5.0 million from surplus carryover used in 2025, the 2026 budget level represents a net increase of \$5.5 million, or approximately 7.1 percent.



Capital Budget

Overview

Annually, the NCUA carries out a rigorous review of agency's needs for IT, facility improvements and repairs, and other multi-year capital investments. The NCUA's executives and staff review the agency's inventory of IT systems, IT hardware, and owned facilities and equipment to determine what requires repair, major renovation, or replacement. The staff then make recommendations for prioritized investments to the NCUA Board.

The proposed 2025 Capital Budget is \$8.2 million. This amount includes \$7.7 million for IT development projects and investments and \$480,000 for central office building minor construction and maintenance projects. Within the total 2025 Capital Budget, the agency has identified \$1.5 million of past-year capital project budget surpluses, which reduces by the same amount the level of new capital funding provided for 2025.

IT systems and hardware require significant capital expenditures for modern organizations. The 2025 Capital Budget's highest priorities include continuing investments to bolster the NCUA's cybersecurity posture and enable the agency to comply with EO 14028, *Improving the Nation's Cybersecurity*, along with enhancements to the MERIT platform. The budget also supports ongoing efforts to modernize the NCUA's IT infrastructure and applications through the Information Technology Infrastructure, Platform and Security Refresh project. Finally, the 2025 Capital Budget continues support for two multi-year projects: development of a personnel security system in compliance with the Trusted Workforce 2.0 directive from the Office of the Director of National Intelligence (ODNI) and OPM, and further technology enhancements to streamline and automate NCUA processes for reviewing field of membership and new charter requests from credit unions and organizing groups.

Routine repairs and lifecycle-driven property renovations are also necessary to maintain investments in the NCUA-owned facilities. Each year the NCUA assesses the physical condition of the agency's properties to determine the need for essential repairs, replacement of building systems that have reached the end of their engineered lives, or renovations required to support changes in the agency's organizational structure, or address revisions to building standards and codes. The 2025 Capital Budget includes funding for the costs associated with routine repairs, maintenance, and lifecycle-driven property renovations for the agency's Alexandria, Virginia, headquarters. Following an assessment and recommendations presented to the Board, a decision was made to sell the NCUA-owned office building in Austin, Texas, which is expected to be completed in 2025. Given potential challenges in the commercial real estate market, however, proceeds from this transaction have not been factored into the 2025 staff draft budget.



	2025–2026 NCUA CAPITAL BUDGET													
	_	024 Board Approved Budget	I	202 5 Requested Budget	(;	Change 2024-2025)	Percent Change (2024-2025)	20	026 Requested Budget		Change (2025-2026)	Percent Change (2025-2026)		
Information technology investments	\$	5,712,000	\$	7,729,000	\$	2,017,000	35.3%	\$	12,050,000	\$	4,321,000	55.9%		
Capital building Improvements and repairs	\$	477,000	\$	480,000	\$	3,000	0.6%	\$	450,000	\$	(30,000)	-6.3%		
Total	\$	6,189,000	\$	8,209,000	\$	2,020,000	32.6%	\$	12,500,000	\$	4,291,000	52.3%		

Detailed descriptions of all proposed 2025 capital projects, including a discussion of how each project helps the agency achieve its goals and objectives, are provided in Appendix B.

Summary of Capital Projects

Examination and Supervision Solution/MERIT Enhancements (\$1.8 million)

Investments in the MERIT platform in 2025 will focus on upgrading the MERIT system platform to take advantage of security improvements, a streamlined interface, and new record management capability; modifying the ISE output files for more efficient import into MERIT; and implementing single sign-on for Partner Gateway applications including for new reports.

Cloud Migration and Modernization (\$1.3 million)

The Cloud Migration and Modernization project is a major multi-year investment that involves moving applications, data, and IT infrastructure from servers located at NCUA controlled facilities to cloud computing environments. This project will also include updating and optimizing existing applications for cloud-native capabilities. By leveraging cloud computing solutions, the NCUA can reduce costs related to data center hosting, IT hardware purchasing, IT maintenance, and associated IT labor costs. The cloud computing environment also provides enhanced security functionality for the agency's systems. Aspects of this project were included under the "Executive Order on Improving the Nation's Cybersecurity" project in past years' budgets.

Network Access Control (\$1.0 million)

This project will strengthen the NCUA's network security by automating and enhancing security patch management and scanning functions for users connected to the agency's networks. In addition, this project will integrate the NCUA's firewall services within the overall network infrastructure and with the new patch and scanning functionality.

CURE Process Automation (\$1.0 million)

This capital investment supports the development of initial requirements and scoping for a public-facing portal that credit unions and organizing groups will use to submit their field of membership and new charter requests.



EO on Improving the Nation's Cybersecurity (\$0.9 million)

The purpose of this capital investment is to ensure the NCUA complies with EO 14028. The project will continue efforts to enable Multi-Factor Authentication for certain NCUA applications, adhere to best practices for supply chain risk management, and implement Zero Trust Architecture for the agency's infrastructure and applications.

Information Technology Infrastructure, Platform, and Security Refresh (\$0.8 million)

This capital project will improve system availability and stability by replacing outdated or end-of-life network and platform hardware to ensure business continuity and efficient operations. Proposed projects for 2025 include refreshing hardware and software, and costs associated with backup storage at the NCUA's disaster recovery site.

Performance Management System (\$0.8 million)

This investment will support a modernized, phased workflow, dashboards, and automated management of over 350 performance plan packages to facilitate the employee performance management program for the NCUA's employees.

Enterprise Laptop Refresh (\$0.6 million)

The purpose of this multi-year capital investment is to boost overall agency productivity, efficiency, and security by providing the NCUA staff with new laptops that offer improved processing power and speed to multitask more effectively, enhanced mobility features like reduced weight and longer battery life, and advanced security features to better combat evolving cyber threats. The budgeted amount for 2025 will support testing and selection of new, standard laptop configurations that will work with the NCUA's business applications and requirements.

Headquarters Building Minor Construction and Maintenance Projects (\$0.5 million)

The proposed 2025 budget supports the NCUA's multi-year headquarters building improvement plan that identifies projects that can be completed incrementally, prioritizing the replacement of health and safety infrastructure. The headquarters building is 30 years old, and many original components need replacement. The ongoing multi-year approach recognizes the critical building management and maintenance needs while reducing the potential budgetary impact of such projects in a single budget year.

System Updates for Significant Regulatory Changes (\$0.3 million)

This project will allow NCUA to update applications and databases to accommodate new regulatory requirements or initiatives. Multiple legacy systems are often impacted when regulatory changes are finalized, or new initiatives are approved by the NCUA Board. These changes can require significant time and programming resources to ensure that related systems maintain their functionality before updated rules take effect.



Onboarding/Offboarding Solution and Personnel Security Case Management System (\$0.3 million)

The purpose of this project is to develop a new personnel security management system for the NCUA in compliance with the Trusted Workforce 2.0 directive promulgated by ODNI and OPM. This system will centralize personnel security case management and serve as a repository for agencywide onboarding/offboarding actions.

Management Automated Resource System (MARS), Time Management System (TMS), and Credit Union Service Organization (CUSO) Development and Reports (\$0.3 million)

This project funds short-term contractor support to develop CUSO Reports, data collection forms such as the CUSO Registry Online form, and to realign MARS and TMS development in support of regional redistricting, new work code classifications, new examiner specialties, and new supervisory examiner groups.

Off-Site Monitoring Project (\$0.3 million)

The goal of this capital investment is to leverage data analytics solutions to minimize technology burdens on examination staff during off-site monitoring while streamlining the way that offices identify emerging and increasing risks to the Share Insurance Fund.

ONES Dedicated Computing Resources (\$0.05 million)

This capital investment will provide dedicated computing resources required for data ingested through the ONES large credit union data collection program.

Generative AI Licensing (\$0.03 million)

This capital project investment will fund a pilot program to test the capability of Microsoft's AI tool, Microsoft 365 Copilot, for possible development across the NCUA.



Share Insurance Fund Administrative Expenses Budget

Overview

The Share Insurance Fund Administrative Expenses Budget funds direct costs associated with authorized Share Insurance Fund activities.¹⁹ Direct costs to the Share Insurance Fund include items such as travel for state examiners attending NCUA-sponsored training, data subscriptions and technology tools for ONES' analysis of large credit unions, audit support for the Share Insurance Fund's financial statements, and certain insurance-related expenses for AMAC operations.

The Share Insurance Fund Administrative Expenses Budget also pays for costs associated with the corporate resolution program and related NCUA Guaranteed Notes (NGN) program. On June 14, 2021, the last outstanding NGN Trust matured. Given the significantly reduced size of the legacy asset portfolio in the corporate asset management estates, the proposed 2025 budget for the corporate resolution program continues to decrease compared to the 2024 funding levels. The remaining assets held by the NCUA are subject to ongoing litigation and will be sold once all claims to ownership of underlying assets are resolved.

Budget Requirements and Description

The proposed 2025 Share Insurance Fund Administrative Expenses Budget is \$5.5 million, which is \$0.4 million, or 7.0 percent, higher than 2024.

The proposed 2025 budget increase is primarily driven by an increase in the projected costs of state examiners traveling to NCUA-sponsored training, increases in the cost of data and analytic models used for analysis of large credit unions, costs of AMAC activities, and inflationary growth in the cost of audit support. The proposed 2024 Share Insurance Fund Administrative Expenses Budget includes:

- \$2.5 million for operating and maintenance costs of the Asset and Liabilities Management system, which allows the NCUA to build internal analytical capabilities to conduct supervisory stress testing analyses and to perform other quantitative risk assessments of large credit unions.
- \$0.3 million for certain insurance-related activities and expenses of AMAC, such as consulting expenses necessary to avoid or attempt to prevent a liquidation or conservatorship and staff travel for consultation on complex or problem cases.
- \$1.5 million for state examiner travel to NCUA-sponsored training classes and \$0.2 million to ensure that state supervisory authorities can securely and efficiently access NCUA applications and the NCUA's MERIT system for state examination and supervision activities.

¹⁹ Direct costs do not include any costs that are shared with the Operating Fund through the Overhead Transfer Rate, and with payments available upon requisition by the Board, without fiscal year limitation, for insurance under section 1787 of the Federal Credit Union Act, and for providing assistance and making expenditures under section 1788 of the Federal Credit Union Act in connection with the liquidation or threatened liquidation of insured credit unions as it may determine to be proper.



- \$0.9 million for financial reporting, including the annual financial audit and for contractor support to ensure effective internal controls for the fund.
- \$0.1 million for corporate resolution program legacy asset waterfall models and valuation analysis support and data. The budget for NGN support decreases by 60.1 percent between 2024 and 2025.





2025–2026 SHARE INSURANCE F	UND ADMIN	IISTRATIVE	EXPENSES	BUDGET	
	2024 Board Approved Budget	2025 Requested Budget	Change (2024-2025)	Percent Change (2024-2025)	2026 Requested Budget
SIF Direct Expenses					
Travel					
OHR: State Examiner Training	1,015	1,490	475	46.8%	1,49
AMAC: Staff travel for problem cases	15	15	-	0.0%	1
Subtotal, Travel (SIF Direct Expenses)	1,030	1,505	475	46.1%	1,50
Administrative Expenses					
ONES: Analytic Tools for Large Credit Unions	116	160	44	37.9%	14
AMAC: Shipping and Miscellaneous Admin	54	48	-6	-11.1%	4
Subtotal Administrative Expenses (SIF Direct Expenses)	170	208	38	22.4%	18
Contracted Services					
ONES: Analytic Tools for Large Credit Unions	2,286	2,300	14	0.6%	2,30
OCFO: Financial Accounting, Audit Support, Bank Charges and Other Support	925	937	12	1.3%	93
OBI: SSA costs for MERIT	216	216	-	0.0%	21
AMAC: Corp. Resolution Study (2022), legal, other contracts	229	220	-9	-3.9%	22
Subtotal, Contracted Services (SIF Direct Expenses)	3,656	3,673	17	0.5%	3,67
Total, SIF Direct Expenses	4,856	5,386	530	10.9%	5,36
Corporate Resolution Program					
Administrative Expenses					
E&I: Software and Data Subscriptions	186	64	-122	-65.6%	
Contracted Services					
E&I: Valuation Services, Contract Support, Training	100	50	-50	-50.0%	
Total, Corporate Resolution Program	286	114	-172	-60.1%	
Total SIF Budget	\$ 5,142	\$ 5,500	\$ 358	7.0%	\$ 5,36

The proposed 2026 budget supports similar workload and resources for the Share Insurance Fund, which at \$5.4 million is \$0.1 million lower than the proposed 2025 level. With the anticipated wind-down of the program in 2025 (subject to the status of ongoing litigation), there is no corporate resolution budget planned for 2026 at this time.



Financing the NCUA's Programs

Overview

The NCUA incurs various expenses to achieve its statutory mission, including those involved in examining and supervising federally insured credit unions. The NCUA Board adopts an Operating Budget, a Capital Budget, and a Share Insurance Fund Administrative Expenses Budget each year to fund most of the costs to operate the agency.²⁰ When formulating the annual budget, the NCUA is mindful that its funding comes from credit unions and strives to operate in an efficient, effective, transparent, and fully accountable manner.

The Federal Credit Union Act authorizes two primary sources to fund the Operating Budget:

- (1) Requisitions from the Share Insurance Fund "for such administrative and other expenses incurred in carrying out the purposes of [Title II of the Act] as [the Board] may determine to be proper,"²¹ and
- (2) "[F]ees and assessments (including income earned on insurance deposits) levied on insured credit unions under [the Act]."²² Among the fees levied under the Act are annual Operating Fees, which are required for federal credit unions under 12 United States Code (U.S.C.) 1755 "and may be expended by the Board to defray the expenses incurred in carrying out the provisions of [the Act,] including the examination and supervision of [federal credit unions]."

Taken together, these authorities effectively require the Board to determine which expenses are appropriately paid from each source while giving the Board broad discretion in allocating expenses.

In 1972, the U.S. Government Accountability Office recommended the NCUA adopt a method for allocating Operating Budget costs—that is, the portion of the NCUA's budget funded by requisitions from the Share Insurance Fund and the portion covered by operating fees paid by federal credit unions.²³ The NCUA has since used an allocation methodology known as the OTR to determine how much of the Operating Budget to fund with a requisition from the Share Insurance Fund.

The NCUA uses the OTR methodology to allocate agency expenses between these two primary funding sources. Specifically, the OTR is the formula the NCUA uses to allocate insurance-related expenses to the

²⁰ Some costs are directly charged to the Share Insurance Fund when appropriate to do so. For example, costs for training and equipment provided to SSAs are directly charged to the Share Insurance Fund.

²¹ 12 U.S.C. 1783(a).

²² 12 U.S.C. 1766(j)(3). Other sources of income for the Operating Budget have included interest income, funds from publication sales, parking fee income, and rental income.

²³ See <u>https://www.gao.gov/products/b-1640314-31</u>.


Share Insurance Fund under Title II of the Act. Almost all other operating expenses are funded through collecting annual operating fees paid by federal credit unions.²⁴

Two statutory provisions directly limit the Board's discretion with respect to Share Insurance Fund requisitions for the NCUA's Operating Budget and, hence, the OTR. First, expenses funded from the Share Insurance Fund must carry out the purposes of Title II of the Act, which relate to share insurance.²⁵ Second, the NCUA may not fund its entire Operating Budget through charges to the Share Insurance Fund.²⁶

The NCUA conducts a comprehensive workload analysis annually. This analysis estimates the amount of time necessary to conduct examinations and supervise federally insured credit unions to carry out the NCUA's dual mission as insurer and regulator. This analysis starts with a field-level review of every federally insured credit union to estimate the number of workload hours needed for the year. These estimates are informed by the overall parameters of the NCUA's examination program, as most recently updated by the Exam Flexibility Initiative approved by the Board.²⁷ The workload estimates are then refined by regional managers and submitted to the NCUA headquarters for the annual budget proposal. The OTR methodology accounts for the costs of the NCUA, not the costs of state regulators. Therefore, there are no calculations made for state examiner hours.

Overhead Transfer Rate

There have not been any major changes to the parameters of the examination program since the current OTR methodology went into effect.²⁸ The minor variations in the OTR since 2018 are the result of routine, small fluctuations in the variables that affect the OTR, including normal fluctuations in the workload budget from one calendar year to the next.

The NCUA Board approved the current methodology for calculating the OTR at its November 2017 open meeting.²⁹ In 2023, the Board published in the *Federal Register* a request for comment regarding the OTR methodology but did not propose or adopt any changes to the current methodology.³⁰ The OTR is designed to cover the NCUA's costs of examining and supervising the risk to the Share Insurance Fund posed by all

²⁴ Annual operating fees must "be determined according to a schedule, or schedules, or other method determined by the NCUA Board to be appropriate, which gives due consideration to the expenses of the [NCUA] in carrying out its responsibilities under the [Act] and to the ability of [federal credit unions] to pay the fee." 12 U.S.C. 1755(b).

²⁵ 12 U.S.C. 1783(a).

 $^{^{26}}$ The Act in 12 U.S.C. 1755(a) states, "[i]n accordance with rules prescribed by the Board, each [federal credit union] shall pay to the [NCUA] an annual operating fee which may be composed of one or more charges identified as to the function or functions for which assessed." *See also* 12 U.S.C. 1766(j)(3).

²⁷ The Exam Flexibility Initiative started with the January 1, 2017, examination cycle, and it allows for extended examination cycles for eligible credit unions. Letters to Credit Unions 16-CU-12, December 2016.

²⁸ On November 16, 2017, the NCUA Board adopted a new methodology for calculating the Overhead Transfer Rate starting with the 2018 Overhead Transfer Rate. 82 FR 55644, November 22, 2017.

²⁹ 82 FR 55644 (Nov. 22, 2017).

³⁰ See <u>https://www.federalregister.gov/documents/2023/12/20/2023-28000/request-for-comment-regarding-overhead-transfer-rate-methodology</u>



federally insured credit unions, as well as the costs of administering the fund. The OTR represents the percentage of the agency's operating budget paid for by a transfer from the Share Insurance Fund. Federally insured credit unions are not billed for and do not have to remit the OTR amount; instead, it is transferred directly to the Operating Fund from the Share Insurance Fund. This transfer, therefore, represents a cost to all federally insured credit unions.

Based on the Board-approved methodology and the proposed budget, the OTR for 2025 is estimated to be 61.7 percent, which is the same percentage as 2024.³¹ Thus, 61.7 percent of the total 2025 Operating Budget is estimated to be paid out of the Share Insurance Fund. The remaining 38.3 percent of the Operating Budget is estimated to be paid for by operating fees collected from federal credit unions. The explicit and implicit distribution of total Operating Budget costs for federal credit unions and federally insured, state-chartered credit unions (FISCUs) is outlined in the table below:

2025 Estimated Distributi	on: Overhead Transfer Rat	e and Operating Fee
Est. Share of the Operating Budget covered by:	Federal Credit Unions	Federally Insured, State-Chartered Credit Unions
Federal Credit Union Operating Fee	38.3%	0.0%
Overhead Transfer Rate x Percent of Insured Shares *	31.0%	30.7%
Overhead transfer Rate X Percent of Insured Shares -	(61.7% x 50.2%)	61.7% x 49.8%
Total	69.3%	30.7%

* Insured Shares are as of June 2024.

At the start of each year, the Office of the Chief Financial Officer estimates the share of annual spending that will be paid by the Share Insurance Fund through the OTR and calculates a monthly cash advance that is transferred from the Share Insurance Fund to the Operating Fund at the start of each month. During the financial close at the end of each month, the OTR is multiplied by each month's actual Operating Fund cash disbursement and expenditures, and the product of that calculation is transferred from the Operating Fund to the Share Insurance Fund or vice versa depending upon whether the Share Insurance Fund share of the cash disbursements was lower or higher than the OTR cash advance. This monthly reconciliation captures the variance between actual and budgeted amounts, so that when the NCUA's expenditures are less than budgeted, the amount charged to the Share Insurance Fund is also less—and those lower expenditures benefit both federally chartered and federally insured, state-chartered credit unions.

The following chart illustrates the share of the proposed 2025 Operating Budget that would be paid by federal credit unions (69.3%) and federally insured, state-chartered credit unions (30.7%).

³¹ See <u>https://www.federalregister.gov/documents/2020/12/28/2020-28487/overhead-transfer-rate-methodology-and-operating-fee-schedule-methodology.</u>





*Note: Federally insured, state-chartered credit unions typically pay supervisory fees to their respective State Supervisory Authority.

Operating Fee

The Board delegated authority to the Chief Financial Officer to administer the methodology approved by the Board for calculating the operating fee and to set the fee schedule as calculated per the approved methodology. In December 2023, the Board approved and published in the *Federal Register* the current operating fee methodology, which forms the basis for how the operating fee is calculated in this section.³² Consistent with its triennial schedule for regulatory reviews, the NCUA requested public comment about the operating fee methodology in 2023. At its December 2023 open meeting, the NCUA Board approved three changes to the methodology for computing the operating fee. First, for purposes of calculating the operating fee, the asset exemption threshold was increased from \$1 million to \$2 million. Second, the NCUA Board agregate asset growth at Federal Credit Unions. Third, in response to comments from the public, as part of future reviews of the operating fee schedule methodology the NCUA Board plans to analyze options to adjust the distribution of operating fee costs.³³

³² See <u>https://www.federalregister.gov/documents/2023/12/26/2023-28303/national-credit-union-administration-operating-fee-schedule-methodology</u>

³³ See <u>https://ncua.gov/newsroom/press-release/2023/board-approves-ncua-2024-2025-and-central-liquidity-facility-budgets</u>



Under the current methodology to determine the annual operating fee assessed on federal credit unions serving consumers, the NCUA first calculates the average of total assets reported in the preceding four calendar quarters available at the time of the calculation, net of any reported Paycheck Protection Program loans. Credit unions with assets less than approximately \$2 million are not assessed an operating fee and their assets are therefore excluded from this calculation. ³⁴

Based on the Board-approved operating fee methodology, which is summarized in the following tables, the share of the proposed 2025 budget funded by the operating fee is \$155.8 million. This equates to 0.01354 percent of the actual average of natural person federal credit union assets for the four calendar quarters ending on June 30, 2024. The calculated operating fee rate for 2025 increases by 9.02 percent compared to the rate in 2024. This computation is shown in the table on the following page.

As part of the Board-approved operating fee methodology, the NCUA can adjust the share of the budget funded by the operating fee based on an analysis of the agency's future cash flow requirements compared to past years' collections that were not spent as planned. Any projected surplus cash from past years' fee collections not required to finance agency operations can accordingly be used to lower the operating fee share of the proposed budget. Because such cash surpluses result from past years' operating fee collections, they do not offset the portion of the budget funded by the OTR. As the final 2025–2026 budget is prepared for consideration by the NCUA Board, the Chief Financial Officer will evaluate the agency's cash position and make a recommendation about any surplus cash that can be credited to the operating fee.

To set the assessment scale for 2025, total growth in natural person federal credit union assets is calculated as the change between the average of the four most-current quarters (that is, the third and fourth quarters of 2023 and the first two quarters of 2024) and the previous four quarters (that is, the third and fourth quarters of 2022 and the first two quarters of 2023), which is calculated as 4.01 percent. The fee exemption threshold and the asset level dividing points for the fee tiers are likewise increased by this same growth rate to preserve the same relative relationship of the scale to the applicable asset base.

³⁴ The exemption threshold for 2025 is estimated at \$2,080,250, which accounts for 4.01% aggregate growth in credit union system assets.



PROJECTED 2025 OPERATING FEE REQUIREMENTS

(\$ in millions)

		202	5 Budget
1	Proposed Operating Budget	\$	419.325
2	Add Capital Investments	\$	8.209
3	Miscellaneous Revenue	\$	(0.570)
4	Operating Budget to apply OTR	\$	426.964
5	Overhead Transfer Rate 61.7%	\$	(263.437)
6	Interest Income	\$	(7.728)
7	Net (sum lines 4 - 6)	\$	155.799
8	Operating Fund adjustment	\$	-
9	Budgeted Operating Fee/Capital Requirements (sum lines 7 - 8)	\$	155.799
10	Corporate Federal CU Operating Fees	\$	(0.325)
11	Natural Person FCU Operating Fees Required (sum lines 9 -10)	\$	155.474
12	Fees projected with Asset Growth of 4.01%	\$	(142.609)
13	Difference (lines 11 & 12)	\$	12.865
14	Average Rate Adjustment Indicated (line 13 divided by line 12)		9.02%



Operating Fee Scale

To illustrate the rate for each asset tier for which operating fees are charged, the tables below show the effect of the average 9.02 percent increase in the operating fee for natural person federal credit unions, using the current \$2.08 million exemption threshold.

PROPOSED 2025 OPERATING FEE SCALE

2024 Natural Perso	n Federal	Credit Union Scale					
Asset Level			Operating Fee	Asse	essment		
\$0	то	\$2,000,000	\$0.00				
\$2,000,000	то	\$2,354,802,962	\$0.00	+	0.00019094	X total assets over	\$2,000,000.00
\$2,354,802,962	то	\$7,125,598,385	\$449,626	+	0.00005565	X total assets over	\$2,354,802,962
\$7,125,598,385	AND	Over	\$715,121	+	0.00001859	X total assets over	\$7,125,598,385
2025 (Proposed) N	atural Pers	on Federal Credit Union Sc	ale				
Projected FCU asset	growth rat	e	4.01%		Change in asse	t level dividing points	
Operating fee rate d	hange		9.02%		Change in asse	ssment rate percentages	
Asset Level			Operating Fee	Asse	essment		
\$0	то	\$2,080,250	\$0.00				
\$2,080,250	то	\$2,449,289,570	\$0.00	+	0.00020816	X total assets over	\$0.00
\$2,449,289,570	то	\$7,411,513,440	\$509,844	+	0.00006067	X total assets over	\$2,449,289,570
\$7,411,513,440	AND	Over	\$810,902	+	0.00002027	X total assets over	\$7,411,513,440
2025 (Proposed) Co	orporate F	ederal Credit Union Scale					
Asset Level			Operating Fee	Asse	essment		
\$50,000,000	то	\$100,000,000	\$10,725	+	0.00019870	X total assets over	\$50,000,000
\$100,000,000	AND	Over	\$20,660	+	0.00001230	X total assets over	\$100,000,000



Appendix A: Supplemental Budget Information

Budget by Strategic Goal

The table below shows the combined total of the 2025 Operating, Capital, and Share Insurance Fund Administrative Expenses budgets, organized by the NCUA's three current strategic goals.

Strate dia Cool	2025 Staff D	Praft Budget
Strategic Goal	Dollars (in Millions)	Positions
Goal 1: Ensure a safe, sound, and viable system of cooperative credit that protects consumers	\$281.06	1,027
Goal 2: Improve the financial well-being of individuals and communities through access to affordable and equitable financial products and services	\$19.28	65
Goal 3: Maximize organizational performance to enable mission success	\$128.23	159
Office of Inspector General	\$4.46	10
Total	\$433.03	1,261

Budgets for the Offices of the Board, Executive Director, General Counsel, Ethics Council, External Affairs and Communications, and Chief Financial Officer and the Capital Budget are allocated across all strategic goals.

Note: Position totals do not include five positions funded by the CLF. Minor rounding differences may occur in totals.



Office Budget Summary

	2025-20	026 NCUA	OPERAT	'ING I	BUDGET					
Office	2024 Board Approved Budget	2025 Requested Budget	2024 - 2025 (Change	2026 Requested Budget	2025 - 2026	Change	Author 2024	rized Pos	itions 2026
Eastern Region	57,973,649	62,638,779	4,665,131	8.0%		2,452,457	3.9%	264	260	260
Southern Region	51,534,265	53,728,361	2,194,095	4.3%		2,342,198	4.4%	234	232	232
Western Region	56,971,428	60,164,601	3,193,173	5.6%		1,825,979	3.0%	248	244	244
Office of National Examinations and Supervision	16,887,934	17,918,056	1,030,122	6.1%		1,578,466	8,8%	54	57	60
Office of Consumer Financial Protection	8,295,407	9,077,484	782,077	9.4%		791,436	8.7%	31	34	34
Subtotal, Examination and Supervision	, ,	203,527,280	11,864,598	6.2%	212,517,817	8,990,536	4.4%	831	827	830
Office of the Board	3,998,314	4,040,586	42,271	1.1%	4,205,477	164,891	4.1%	13	13	13
Office of the Executive Director	4,180,635	4,711,005	530,370	12.7%	4,882,908	171,903	3.6%	10	10	10
Federal Financial Institutions Examination Council	2,350,000	2,400,000	50,000	2.1%	2,400,000		0.0%		-	
Office of the Executive Secretary	-	460,971	460,971	N/A	977,167	516,196	112.0%		2	3
Office of the Ombudsman	581,052	830,849	249,798	43.0%	865,045	34,195	4.1%	2	3	3
Office of Ethics Counsel	2,233,522	2,307,806	74,284	3.3%	2,413,996	106,190	4.6%	7	7	7
Office of Business Innovation	4,931,853	6,114,966	1,183,113	24.0%	7,412,670	1,297,703	21.2%	15	17	19
Office of Continuity and Security Management	5,797,907	6,210,198	412,292	7.1%	6,382,859	172,661	2.8%	12	13	13
Office of Minority and Women Inclusion	4,414,174	4,513,851	99,677	2.3%	4,801,961	288,111	6.4%	10	11	11
Office of the Chief Economist	2,963,274	3,210,643	247,370	8.3%	3,498,588	287,944	9.0%	8	9	ç
Office of the Chief Financial Officer	25,264,361	25,755,151	490,791	1.9%	27,244,562	1,489,410	5.8%	55	55	55
Cross-cutting agency expenses	(18,622,495)	(51,198)	18,571,297	-99.7%	7,590,709	7,641,907	14926.1%	-	-	
Office of the Chief Information Officer	62,568,571	65,259,655	2,691,084	4.3%	68,484,805	3,225,150	4.9%	50	50	50
Credit Union Resources and Expansion	10,873,394	11,719,405	846,011	7.8%	12,222,546	503,140	4.3%	41	41	41
Office of Examination & Insurance	16,554,806	18,059,038	1,504,231	9.1%	19,379,184	1,320,146	7.3%	53	56	57
Office of General Counsel	14,926,034	15,630,421	704,387	4.7%	16,777,081	1,146,660	7.3%	46	47	49
Office of Inspector General	4,290,027	4,460,090	170,063	4.0%	4,617,238	157,148	3.5%	10	10	10
Office of Human Resources	22,640,418	24,827,962	2,187,545	9.7%	27,612,004	2,784,042	11.2%	46	49	49
Office of External Affairs and Communication	6,469,138	7,750,358	1,281,219	19.8%	8,442,712	692,355	8.9%	15	18	20
Asset Management and Assistance Center	6,416,332	7,585,960	1,169,628	18.2%	7,877,673	291,713	3.8%	23	23	23
Subtotal, Other Offices	182,831,318	215,797,720	32,966,402	18.0%	238,089,184	22,291,465	10.3%	416	434	442
Total, Operating Budget	\$374,494,000	\$419,325,000	\$44,831,000	12.0%	\$450,607,000	\$31,282,000	7.5%	1,247	1,261	1,272



Office Budgets

	OFFICE O	F TH	E CHAIRMA	\N: 2	2025-2026 B	UDGET S	UMN	ARY			
	 024 Board oved Budget	202	5 Proposed Budget		2024-2025 Change	Percent Change		6 Proposed Budget	_	025-2026 Change	Percent Change
Positions	4.0		4.0		-	0.0%		4.0		-	0.0%
Employee Compensation	1,089,761		1,111,969		22,209	2.0%		1,164,636		52,667	4.7%
Salaries	765,019		773,628		8,610	1.1%		814,075		40,446	5.2%
Benefits	324,742		338,341		13,599	4.2%		350,562		12,221	3.6%
Travel	50,000		50,000		-	0.0%		50,000		-	0.0%
Rent /Comm/Util	2,250		2,250		-	0.0%		2,250		-	0.0%
Administrative	10,000		10,000		-	0.0%		10,000		-	0.0%
Contracted Services	39,000		29,000		(10,000)	-25.6%		29,000		-	0.0%
Total	\$ 1,191,011	\$	1,203,219	\$	12,209	1.0%	\$	1,255,886	\$	52,667	4.4%

	VICE CHAI	RMAN HAUPTM	AN: 2025-2026	BUDGET	SUMMARY		
	2024 Board Approved Budget	2025 Proposed Budget	2024-2025 Change	Percent Change	2026 Proposed Budget	2025-2026 Change	Percent Change
Positions	3.0	3.0	-	0.0%	3.0	-	0.0%
Employee Compensation	752,009	748,786	(3,223)	-0.4%	780,281	31,495	4.2%
Salaries	525,639	522,117	(3,522)	-0.7%	546,257	24,140	4.6%
Benefits	226,370	226,669	299	0.1%	234,024	7,354	3.2%
Travel	50,000	65,000	15,000	30.0%	65,000	-	0.0%
Rent /Comm/Util	6,750	6,750	2	0.0%	6,750	-	0.0%
Administrative	14,000	14,000	-	0.0%	14,000	-	0.0%
Contracted Services	83,000	68,000	(15,000)	-18.1%	68,000	-	0.0%
Total	\$ 905,759	\$ 902,536	\$ (3,223)	-0.4%	\$ 934,031	\$ 31,495	3.5%

BOARD MEMBER OTSUKA: 2025-2026 BUDGET SUMMARY	
---	--

	2024 Board Approved Budget	2025 Proposed Budget	2024-2025 Change	Percent Change	2026 Proposed Budget	2025-2026 Change	Percent Change
Positions	3.0	3.0	-	0.0%	3.0	-	0.0%
Employee Compensation	784,822	777,197	(7,624)	-1.0%	814,303	37,105	4.8%
Salaries	551,586	543,832	(7,753)	-1.4%	572,265	28,432	5.2%
Benefits	233,236	233,365	129	0.1%	242,038	8,673	3.7%
Travel	65,000	65,000	-	0.0%	65,000	-	0.0%
Rent /Comm/Util	6,750	6,750	-	0.0%	6,750		0.0%
Administrative	14,000	14,000	-	0.0%	14,000	-	0.0%
Contracted Services	98,000	98,000	-	0.0%	98,000	-	0.0%
Total	\$ 968,572	\$ 960,947	\$ (7,624)	-0.8%	\$ 998,053	\$ 37,105	3.9%





	OFFICE OF THE BOARD: 2025-2026 BUDGET SUMMARY													
	_	024 Board oved Budget		5 Proposed Budget		024-2025 Change	Percent Change	202	26 Proposed Budget	_	025-2026 Change	Percent Change		
Positions		13.0		13.0		-	-		13.0		-	0.0%		
Employee Compensation		3,484,564		3,536,836		52,271	1.5%		3,701,727		164,891	4.7%		
Salaries		2,452,739		2,481,200		28,461	1.2%		2,607,763		126,564	5.1%		
Benefits		1,031,825		1,055,636		23,811	2.3%		1,093,964		38,328	3.6%		
Travel		169,000		185,000		16,000	9.5%		185,000		-	0.0%		
Rent /Comm/Util		16,250		16,250		-	0.0%		16,250		-	0.0%		
Administrative		40,500		40,500		-	0.0%		40,500		-	0.0%		
Contracted Services		288,000		262,000		(26,000)	-9.0%		262,000		-	0.0%		
Total	\$	3,998,314	\$	4,040,586	\$	42,271	1.1%	\$	4,205,477	\$	164,891	4.1%		

	OFFICE OF THE	EXECUTIVE DI	RECTOR: 2025-2	2026 BUD	GET SUMMARY		
	2024 Board Approved Budget	2025 Proposed Budget	2024-2025 Change	Percent Change	2026 Proposed Budget	2025-2026 Change	Percent Change
Positions*	10.0	10.0	-	0.0%	10.0	-	0.0%
Employee Compensation	3,284,885	3,560,255	275,370	8.4%	3,732,158	171,903	4.8%
Salaries	2,318,339	2,530,899	212,561	9.2%	2,663,218	132,319	5.2%
Benefits	966,546	1,029,356	62,809	6.5%	1,068,940	39,584	3.8%
Travel	30,000	85,000	55,000	183.3%	85,000	-	0.0%
Rent /Comm/Util	20,000	20,000	2	0.0%	20,000	-	0.0%
Administrative	2,375,250	25,250	(2,350,000)	-98.9%	25,250	-	0.0%
ED Core	25,250	25,250	-	0.0%	25,250	-	0.0%
FFIEC	2,350,000	121	(2,350,000)	-100.0%		22	0.0%
Contracted Services	820,500	3,420,500	2,600,000	316.9%	3,420,500	-	0.0%
ED Core	820,500	1,020,500	200,000	24.4%	1,020,500	-	0.0%
FFIEC	2	2,400,000	2,400,000	2	2,400,000	-	0.0%
Total	\$ 6,530,635	\$ 7,111,005	\$ 580,370	8.9%	\$ 7,282,908	\$ 171,903	2.4%

OFFICE OF THE EXECUTIVE SECRETARY: 2025-2026 BUDGET SUMMARY

	2024 Board Approved Budget	2025 Propo Budget	sed	2024-202 Change	5	Percent Change	202	86 Proposed Budget	 025-2026 Change	Percent Change
Positions	-		2.0		2.0	N/A		3.0	1.0	50.0%
Employee Compensation	-	390	,971	390,	971	N/A		907,168	516,197	132.0%
Salaries	-	278	762	278,	762	N/A		655,037	376,275	135.0%
Benefits	-	112	,210	112,	210	N/A		252,131	139,921	124.7%
Travel	-	10	,000	10,	000	N/A		10,000	-	0.0%
Rent /Comm/Util	-		-		-	-		-	-	-
Administrative	-		-		-	-		-	-	-
Contracted Services	-	60	,000	60,	000	N/A		60,000	-	0.0%
Total	-	\$ 460,	971	\$ 460,	971	N/A	\$	977,168	\$ 516,197	112.0%





	2024 Board	2025 Proposed	2024-2025	Percent	2026 Proposed	2025-2026	Percent
	Approved Budget	Budget	Change	Change	Budget	Change	Change
Positions	2.0	3.0	1.0	50.0%	3.0	-	0.0%
Employee Compensation	568,552	803,349	234,798	41.3%	837,545	34,195	4.3%
Salaries	402,580	574,899	172,318	42.8%	601,070	26,172	4.6%
Benefits	165,971	228,451	62,479	37.6%	236,474	8,023	3.5%
Travel	2,500	9,500	7,000	280.0%	9,500	-	0.0%
Rent /Comm/Util	2,000	2,000	-	0.0%	2,000	-	0.0%
Administrative	1,000	9,000	8,000	800.0%	9,000	-	0.0%
Contracted Services	7,000	7,000	-	0.0%	7,000	-	0.0%
Total	\$ 581,052	\$ 830,849	\$ 249,798	43.0%	\$ 865,045	\$ 34,195	4.1%

	c	OFFICE OF	ETH	ICS COUNS	EL: 2	2025–2026	BUDGET	SUM	MARY			
		Board d Budget		5 Proposed Budget	_	024-2025 Change	Percent Change	202	6 Proposed Budget	2	025-2026 Change	Percent Change
Positions		7.0		7.0		-	0.0%		7.0		-	0.0%
Employee Compensation		2,123,270		2,196,091		72,821	3.4%		2,302,281		106,190	4.8%
Salaries		1,514,785		1,569,800		55,014	3.6%		1,651,871		82,071	5.2%
Benefits		608,485		626,291		17,806	2.9%		650,410		24,119	3.9%
Travel		15,000		15,000		-	0.0%		15,000		-	0.0%
Rent /Comm/Util		2		1.1		2	N/A		-		1.1	0.0%
Administrative		3,000		3,000		-	0.0%		3,000		-	0.0%
Contracted Services		92,252		93,715		1,463	1.6%		93,715		-	0.0%
Total	\$ 2	2,233,522	\$	2,307,806	\$	74,284	3.3%	\$	2,413,996	\$	106,190	4.6%

	O	FICE OF BU	JSIN	ESS INNOVA	ATIO	N: 2025-20	26 BUDG	ET S	SUMMARY			
		24 Board wed Budget	202	25 Proposed Budget	2	2024-2025 Change	Percent Change	20	26 Proposed Budget	2	025-2026 Change	Percent Change
Positions		15.0		17.0		2.0	13.3%		19.0		2.0	11.8%
Employee Compensation		4,103,729		4,884,293		780,564	19.0%		5,681,997		797,703	16.3%
Salaries		2,905,330		3,477,112		571,782	19.7%		4,056,775		579,663	16.7%
Benefits		1,198,400		1,407,182		208,782	17.4%		1,625,221		218,040	15.5%
Travel		100,000		170,000		70,000	70.0%		170,000		-	0.0%
Rent /Comm/Util		9,000		10,000		1,000	11.1%		10,000		-	0.0%
Administrative		6,300		6,500		200	3.2%		6,500		-	0.0%
Contracted Services		712,824		1,044,173		331,349	46.5%		1,544,173		500,000	47.9%
Total	\$	4,931,853	\$	6,114,966	\$	1,183,113	24.0%	\$	7,412,670	\$	1,297,703	21.2%





OFFIC	E OF CONTINUITY	AND SECURITY	MANAGEMENT	r: 2025–2	2026 BUDGET SU	JMMARY	
	2024 Board Approved Budget	2025 Proposed Budget	2024-2025 Change	Percent Change	2026 Proposed Budget	2025-2026 Change	Percent Change
Positions	12.0	13.0	1.0	0.1	13.0	-	0.0%
Employee Compensation	3,403,080	3,696,069	292,990	8.6%	3,868,730	172,661	4.7%
Salaries	2,414,873	2,629,409	214,535	8.9%	2,762,366	132,957	5.1%
Benefits	988,206	1,066,661	78,454	7.9%	1,106,365	39,704	3.7%
Travel	25,000	25,000	-	0.0%	25,000	-	0.0%
Rent /Comm/Util	55,000	110,000	55,000	100.0%	110,000	-	0.0%
Administrative	36,000	41,000	5,000	13.9%	41,000	-	0.0%
Contracted Services	2,278,827	2,338,129	59,302	2.6%	2,338,129	-	0.0%
Total	\$ 5,797,907	\$ 6,210,198	\$ 412,292	7.1%	\$ 6,382,859	\$ 172,661	2.8%

OFFICE OF MINORITY AND WOMEN INCLUSION: 2025–2026 BUDGET SUMMARY

	2024 Board Approved Budget	2025 Proposed Budget	2024-2025 Change	Percent Change	2026 Proposed Budget	2025-2026 Change	Percent Change
Positions	10.0	11.0	1.0	10.0%	11.0	-	0.0%
Employee Compensation	2,904,975	3,232,926	327,951	11.3%	3,521,036	288,111	8.9%
Salaries	2,062,228	2,304,208	241,979	11.7%	2,518,582	214,374	9.3%
Benefits	842,747	928,718	85,972	10.2%	1,002,455	73,736	7.9%
Travel	60,000	63,925	3,925	6.5%	63,925	-	0.0%
Rent /Comm/Util	11,550	5,000	(6,550)	-56.7%	5,000	-	0.0%
Administrative	184,180	198,500	14,320	7.8%	198,500	-	0.0%
Contracted Services	1,253,469	1,013,500	(239,969)	-19.1%	1,013,500	-	0.0%
Total	\$ 4,414,174	\$ 4,513,851	\$ 99,677	2.3%	\$ 4,801,961	\$ 288,111	6.4%

OFFICE OF THE CHIEF ECONOMIST: 2025-2026 BUDGET SUMMARY

		24 Board oved Budget	202	25 Proposed Budget	2	2024-2025 Change	Percent Change		6 Proposed Budget	2	2025-2026 Change	Percent Change
Positions		8.0		9.0		1.0	12.5%		9.0		-	0.0%
Employee Compensation		2,629,911		2,877,280		247,370	9.4%		3,165,225		287,944	10.0%
Salaries		1,885,251		2,064,856		179,605	9.5%		2,280,049		215,192	10.4%
Benefits		744,659		812,424		67,764	9.1%		885,176		72,752	9.0%
Travel		20,000		20,000		-	0.0%		20,000		-	0.0%
Rent /Comm/Util		4,200		4,200		-	0.0%		4,200			0.0%
Administrative		304,849		304,849		-	0.0%		304,849		-	0.0%
Contracted Services		4,314		4,314		-	0.0%		4,314		-	0.0%
Total	\$	2,963,274	\$	3,210,643	\$	247,370	8.3%	\$	3,498,588	\$	287,944	9.0%





	2024 Board Approved Budget	2025 Proposed Budget	2024-2025 Change	Percent Change	2026 Proposed Budget	2025-2026 Change	Percent Change
Positions	31.0	34.0	3.0	9.7%	34.0	-	0.0%
Employee Compensation	7,491,112	8,184,404	693,292	9.3%	8,975,840	791,436	9.7%
Salaries	5,240,507	5,740,197	499,690	9.5%	6,322,334	582,138	10.1%
Benefits	2,250,605	2,444,207	193,602	8.6%	2,653,506	209,298	8.6%
Travel	650,000	650,300	300	0.0%	650,300	-	0.0%
Rent /Comm/Util	36,795	33,600	(3,195)	-8.7%	33,600	-	0.0%
Administrative	17,500	14,180	(3,320)	-19.0%	14,180	-	0.0%
Contracted Services	100,000	195,000	95,000	95.0%	195,000	-	0.0%
Total	\$ 8,295,407	\$ 9,077,484	\$ 782,077	9.4%	\$ 9,868,920	\$ 791,436	8.7%

	OFFICE OF THE C	HIEF FI	NANCIAI	LOF	FICER: 202	5–2026 B	UDO	GET SUMMA	RY		
	2024 Board Approved Budget		roposed dget		2024-2025 Change	Percent Change	20	26 Proposed Budget	2	2025-2026 Change	Percent Change
Positions	55.0		55.0		-	0.0%		55.0		-	0.0%
Employee Compensation	17,352,685	1	8,631,679		1,278,995	7.4%		19,482,997		851,317	4.6%
Salaries	11,679,275	1	3,058,472		1,379,198	11.8%		13,702,458		643,986	4.9%
OCFO	9,885,627	1	0,421,444		535,818	5.4%		10,966,292		544,847	5.2%
Crosscutting	1,793,648		2,637,028		843,380	47.0%		2,736,166		99,138	3.8%
Benefits	5,673,410		5,573,207		(100,203)	-1.8%		5,780,539		207,332	3.7%
OCFO	4,182,687		4,362,453		179,766	4.3%		4,527,016		164,563	3.8%
Crosscutting	1,490,723		1,210,754		(279,969)	-18.8%		1,253,523		42,769	3.5%
Travel	51,720		(200,005)		(251,725)	-486.7%		(200,005)		-	0.0%
OCFO	50,000		50,000		-	0.0%		50,000		-	0.0%
Crosscutting	1,720		(250,005)		(251,725)	-14635.2%		(250,005)		-	0.0%
Rent /Comm/Util	1,972,375		1,287,225		(685,150)	-34.7%		1,787,225		500,000	38.8%
OCFO	1,972,300		1,286,807		(685,493)	-34.8%		1,286,807		-	0.0%
Crosscutting	75		418		343	457.3%		500,418		500,000	119617.2%
Administrative	2,068,280		2,138,336		70,056	3.4%		2,638,336		500,000	23.4%
OCFO	718,000		788,500		70,500	9.8%		788,500		-	0.0%
Crosscutting	1,350,280		1,349,836		(444)	0.0%		1,849,836		500,000	37.0%
Contracted Services	(14,803,194)		3,846,718		18,649,912	126.0%		11,126,718		7,280,000	189.3%
OCFO	8,455,747		8,845,947		390,200	4.6%		9,625,947		780,000	8.8%
Crosscutting	(23,258,941)	(4	1,999,229)		18,259,712	78.5%		1,500,771		6,500,000	130.0%
Total	\$ 6,641,866	\$ 25	,703,953	\$	19,062,087	287.0%	\$	34,835,271	\$	9,131,317	35.5%
OCFO Total	25,264,361	2	5,755,151		490,791	1.9%		27,244,562		1,489,410	5.8%
Crosscutting	(18,622,495)		(51,198)		18,571,297	99.7%		7,590,709		7,641,907	14926.1%





c	OFFICE OF THE CH	IEF INFORMATIO	N OFFICER: 20	25–2026	BUDGET SUMM/	ARY	
	2024 Board Approved Budget	2025 Proposed Budget	2024-2025 Change	Percent Change	2026 Proposed Budget	2025-2026 Change	Percent Change
Positions	50.0	50.0	-	0.0%	50.0	-	0.0%
Employee Compensation	14,440,258	15,051,986	611,728	4.2%	15,777,136	725,150	4.8%
Salaries	10,246,520	10,709,260	462,740	4.5%	11,269,155	559,895	5.2%
Benefits	4,193,738	4,342,726	148,988	3.6%	4,507,981	165,255	3.8%
Travel	60,000	60,000	-	0.0%	60,000	-	0.0%
Rent /Comm/Util	3,580,607	3,678,850	98,243	2.7%	3,678,850	-	0.0%
Administrative	30,000	30,000	-	0.0%	30,000	-	0.0%
Contracted Services	44,457,706	46,438,819	1,981,113	4.5%	48,938,819	2,500,000	5.4%
Total	\$ 62,568,571	\$ 65,259,655	\$ 2,691,085	4.3%	\$ 68,484,805	\$ 3,225,150	4.9%

OFFICE OF NATIONAL EXAMINATIONS AND SUPERVISION: 2025-2026 BUDGET SUMMARY

		024 Board oved Budget	20	25 Proposed Budget		2024-2025 Change	Percent Change	202	86 Proposed Budget	2	025-2026 Change	Percent Change
Positions		54.0		57.0		3.0	5.6%		60.0		3.0	5.3%
Employee Compensation		15,268,184		16,253,442		985,258	6.5%		17,831,909		1,578,466	9.7%
Salaries		10,808,978		11,532,251		723,273	6.7%		12,700,642		1,168,391	10.1%
Benefits		4,459,206		4,721,192		261,985	5.9%		5,131,267		410,075	8.7%
Travel		1,200,000		1,300,000		100,000	8.3%		1,300,000		-	0.0%
Rent /Comm/Util		50,000		63,350		13,350	26.7%		63,350			0.0%
Administrative		44,040		51,710		7,670	17.4%		51,710		-	0.0%
Contracted Services		325,710		249,554		(76,157)	-23.4%		249,554		-	0.0%
Total	\$	16,887,934	\$	17,918,056	\$	1,030,122	6.1%	\$	19,496,522	\$	1,578,466	8.8%

OFFICE OF CREDIT UNION RESOURCES AND EXPANSION: 2025-2026 BUDGET SUMMARY

	2024 Board Approved Budget	2025 Proposed Budget	2024-2025 Change	Percent Change	2026 Proposed Budget	2025-2026 Change	Percent Change				
Positions	41.0	41.0		0.0%	41.0		0.0%				
Employee Compensation	10,043,394	10,491,905	448,511	4.5%	10,995,046	503,140	4.8%				
Salaries	7,028,250	7,363,259	335,009	4.8%	7,748,221	384,961	5.2%				
Benefits	3,015,144	3,128,646	113,502	3.8%	3,246,825	118,179	3.8%				
Travel	200,000	250,000	50,000	25.0%	250,000	-	0.0%				
Rent /Comm/Util	34,000	32,000	(2,000)	-5.9%	32,000	-	0.0%				
Administrative	35,000	39,500	4,500	12.9%	39,500	Q-1	0.0%				
Contracted Services	561,000	906,000	345,000	61.5%	906,000	-	0.0%				
Total	10,873,394	11,719,405	846,011	7.8%	12,222,546	\$503,140	4.3%				





	OFFI	CE OF EXAM	INA	TION AND IN	ISUI	RANCE: 2025	5-2026 B	UDGET	SUMMAR	ł۲		
	-	024 Board roved Budget	20	25 Proposed Budget		2024-2025 Change	Percent Change		roposed dget		025-2026 Change	Percent Change
Positions		53.0		56.0		3.0	5.7%		57.0		1.0	1.8%
Employee Compensation		14,706,706		16,299,586		1,592,879	10.8%	12	7,619,732		1,320,146	8.1%
Salaries		10,400,782		11,588,725		1,187,943	11.4%	12	2,573,589		984,864	8.5%
Benefits		4,305,924		4,710,860		404,936	9.4%	:	5,046,142		335,282	7.1%
Travel		445,000		550,000		105,000	23.6%		550,000		-	0.0%
Rent /Comm/Util		34,500		35,000		500	1.4%		35,000		-	0.0%
Administrative		248,600		286,665		38,065	15.3%		286,665		-	0.0%
Contracted Services		1,120,000		887,787		(232,213)	-20.7%		887,787		-	0.0%
Total	\$	16,554,806	\$	18,059,038	\$	1,504,231	9.1%	\$ 19,	379,184	\$	1,320,146	7.3%

		OFFICE OF	GEN	ERAL COUN	SEL	: 2025–2026	6 BUDGE	T SUMMARY			
	_	024 Board oved Budget	20	25 Proposed Budget	3	2024-2025 Change	Percent Change	2026 Proposec Budget	1 2	2025-2026 Change	Percent Change
Positions		46.0		47.0		1.0	2.2%	49.0	0	2.0	4.3%
Employee Compensation		14,348,034		14,581,421		233,387	1.6%	15,728,08	1	1,146,660	7.9%
Salaries		10,253,644		10,420,391		166,747	1.6%	11,274,450	5	854,064	8.2%
Benefits		4,094,390		4,161,030		66,640	1.6%	4,453,62	5	292,595	7.0%
Travel		90,000		90,000		-	0.0%	90,00	D	-	0.0%
Rent /Comm/Util		3,000		4,000		1,000	33.3%	4,00	D	1.	0.0%
Administrative		5,000		5,000		-	0.0%	5,00	D	-	0.0%
Contracted Services		480,000		950,000		470,000	97.9%	950,00	D	-	0.0%
Total	\$	14,926,034	\$	15,630,421	\$	704,387	4.7%	\$ 16,777,08	1\$	1,146,660	7.3%

OFFICE OF HUMAN RESOURCES: 2025-2026 BUDGET SUMMARY	

	 024 Board roved Budget	20	25 Proposed Budget	2	2024-2025 Change	Percent Change	20	26 Proposed Budget	2	2025-2026 Change	Percent Change
Positions	46.0		49.0		3.0	6.5%		49.0		-	0.0%
Employee Compensation	13,496,410		15,309,490		1,813,081	13.4%		16,093,532		784,042	5.1%
Salaries	8,512,523		9,708,362		1,195,839	14.0%		10,303,181		594,819	6.1%
Benefits	4,983,887		5,601,129		617,242	12.4%		5,790,351		189,223	3.4%
Travel	2,460,000		2,747,500		287,500	11.7%		3,747,500		1,000,000	36.4%
Rent /Comm/Util	328,600		469,000		140,400	42.7%		1,019,000		550,000	117.3%
Administrative	1,165,950		975,693		(190,257)	-16.3%		1,225,693		250,000	25.6%
Contracted Services	5,189,458		5,326,279		136,821	2.6%		5,526,279		200,000	3.8%
Total	\$ 22,640,418	\$	24,827,962	\$	2,187,545	9.7%	\$	27,612,004	\$	2,784,042	11.2%





	2024 Board Approved Budge		25 Proposed Budget	 24-2025 Change	Percent Change		Proposed Idget	 25-2026 hange	Percent Change
Positions	15.0)	18.0	3.0	20.0%		20.0	2.0	11.1%
Employee Compensation	3,932,738	;	4,489,608	556,869	14.2%		5,181,962	692,355	15.4%
Salaries	2,775,240)	3,168,537	393,297	14.2%		3,660,100	491,564	15.5%
Benefits	1,157,499		1,321,071	163,572	14.1%		1,521,862	200,791	15.2%
Travel	50,000)	50,000	-	0.0%		50,000	-	0.0%
Rent /Comm/Util	32,500)	30,500	(2,000)	-6.2%		30,500	-	0.0%
Administrative	174,400)	212,750	38,350	22.0%		212,750	-	0.0%
Contracted Services	2,279,500	,	2,967,500	688,000	30.2%		2,967,500	-	0.0%
Total	\$ 6,469,138	\$	7,750,358	\$ 1,281,219	19.8%	\$ 1	8,442,712	\$ 692,355	8.9%

As	SET N	IANAGEMEN	A TA	ND ASSISTA	NC	CENTER 2	025-2026	5 BU	DGET SUMN	IARY	r	
	-	024 Board oved Budget	202	25 Proposed Budget		2024-2025 Change	Percent Change	20	26 Proposed Budget	_	025-2026 Change	Percent Change
Positions		23.0		23.0		-	0.0%		23.0		-	0.0%
Employee Compensation		5,952,098		6,064,529		112,431	1.9%		6,356,242		291,713	4.8%
Salaries		4,185,609		4,270,599		84,990	2.0%		4,493,715		223,116	5.2%
Benefits		1,766,489		1,793,930		27,441	1.6%		1,862,527		68,597	3.8%
Travel		125,280		125,280		-	0.0%		125,280		-	0.0%
Rent /Comm/Util		6,113		12,150		6,037	98.8%		12,150		12	0.0%
Administrative		65,341		63,501		(1,840)	-2.8%		63,501		-	0.0%
Contracted Services		267,500		1,320,500		1,053,000	393.6%		1,320,500		-	0.0%
Total	\$	6,416,332	\$	7,585,960	\$	1,169,628	18.2%	\$	7,877,673	\$	291,713	3.8%





		EAST	ERI	NREGION: 2	025	-2026 BUD	GET SUM	MARY			
	-	2024 Board roved Budget	20	25 Proposed Budget		2024-2025 Change	Percent Change	2026 Propose Budget	1	2025-2026 Change	Percent Change
Positions		264.0		260.0		(4.0)	-1.5%	260.	0	-	0.0%
Employee Compensation		53,701,839		57,750,269		4,048,431	7.5%	59,802,72	6	2,052,457	3.6%
Salaries		37,168,964		40,099,807		2,930,843	7.9%	41,686,66	9	1,586,862	4.0%
Benefits		16,532,875		17,650,463		1,117,588	6.8%	18,116,05	7	465,595	2.6%
Travel		3,650,000		4,125,000		475,000	13.0%	4,525,00	0	400,000	9.7%
Rent /Comm/Util		288,610		359,020		70,410	24.4%	359,02	0	-	0.0%
Administrative		189,200		225,490		36,290	19.2%	225,49	0	-	0.0%
Contracted Services		144,000		179,000		35,000	24.3%	179,00	0	-	0.0%
Total	\$	57,973,649	\$	62,638,779	\$	4,665,131	8.0%	\$ 65,091,23	6\$	2,452,457	3.9%

		SOUT	HER	N REGION:	202	5–2026 BUD	GET SUN	IMA	RY			
	-	2024 Board roved Budget	20	25 Proposed Budget		2024-2025 Change	Percent Change	20	26 Proposed Budget	2	025-2026 Change	Percent Change
Positions		234.0		232.0		(2.0)	-0.9%		232.0		-	0.0%
Employee Compensation		46,154,367		47,873,298		1,718,930	3.7%		49,815,496		1,942,198	4.1%
Salaries		31,811,713		33,112,094		1,300,381	4.1%		34,592,819		1,480,724	4.5%
Benefits		14,342,654		14,761,203		418,549	2.9%		15,222,677		461,474	3.1%
Travel		4,583,000		5,148,000		565,000	12.3%		5,548,000		400,000	7.8%
Rent /Comm/Util		392,400		373,855		(18,545)	-4.7%		373,855		1	0.0%
Administrative		228,410		153,445		(74,965)	-32.8%		153,445		-	0.0%
Contracted Services		176,088		179,763		3,675	2.1%		179,763		-	0.0%
Total	\$	51,534,265	\$	53,728,361	\$	2,194,095	4.3%	\$	56,070,559	\$	2,342,198	4.4%

WESTERN	REGION:	2025-202	6 BUDGET	SUMMARY

	WLS	I LIN	A REGION, 2	023	-2020 000	GETSOM		NI			
	 2024 Board roved Budget	20	25 Proposed Budget		2024-2025 Change	Percent Change	20	26 Proposed Budget	2	2025-2026 Change	Percent Change
Positions	248.0		244.0		(4.0)	-1.6%		244.0		-	0.0%
Employee Compensation	50,259,328		52,825,801		2,566,473	5.1%		54,346,780		1,520,979	2.9%
Salaries	34,694,296		36,670,463		1,976,167	5.7%		37,854,863		1,184,399	3.2%
Benefits	15,565,031		16,155,338		590,306	3.8%		16,491,917		336,579	2.1%
Travel	6,000,000		6,600,000		600,000	10.0%		6,905,000		305,000	4.6%
Rent /Comm/Util	258,500		286,000		27,500	10.6%		286,000		-	0.0%
Administrative	241,600		252,800		11,200	4.6%		252,800		-	0.0%
Contracted Services	212,000		200,000		(12,000)	-5.7%		200,000		-	0.0%
Total	\$ 56,971,428	\$	60,164,601	\$	3, 193, 174	5.6%	\$	61,990,580	\$	1,825,979	3.0%



Appendix B: Capital Projects

Description	024 Board Approved	202	5 Requested	202	26 Requested
Information Technology Investments					
Examination and Supervision Solution/MERIT Enhancements	\$ 540,000	\$	1,771,000	\$	576,000
Cloud Migration & Modernization	\$ -	\$	1,300,000	\$	2,806,00
Network Access Control	\$ -	\$	1,050,000	\$	
EO on Improving the Nation's Cybersecurity	\$ 2,408,000	\$	850,000	\$	250,00
IT Infrastructure, Platform and Security Refresh	\$ 1,294,000	\$	775,000	\$	
Performance Management System	\$ -	\$	750,000	\$	
Enterprise Laptop Refresh	\$ -	\$	550,000	\$	4,385,00
Onboarding/ Offboarding Solution and Personnel Security Case Management System	\$ 730,000	\$	300,000	\$	
MARS and CUSO Development and Reports	\$ -	\$	260,000	\$	
Generative Al Licensing	\$ -	\$	25,000	\$	
System Updates for Significant Regulatory Changes	\$ -	\$	300,000	\$	300,00
CURE Process Automation	\$ 1,100,000	\$	1,000,000	\$	
Off-Site Monitoring Project	\$ -	\$	250,000	\$	
ONES Dedicated Computing Resources	\$ -	\$	48,000	\$	
Data Collection and Sharing Solution	\$ 208,000	\$	-	\$	
Microsoft Power Platform/M365 Enhancements	\$ 500,000	\$	-	\$	
NCUA Website Development	\$ 100,000	\$	-	\$	
Balances from completed prior-year projects	\$ (1,168,000)	\$	(1,500,000)	\$	
Anticipated Additional Information Technology Investments	\$ -	\$	-	\$	3,733,00
fotal, Information Technology Investments	\$ 5,712,000	\$	7,729,000	\$	12,050,00
Capital building improvements and repairs					
Central Office maintenance and repair	\$ 477,000	\$	480,000	\$	450,00
Grand Total, Capital Projects	\$ 6,189,000	\$	8,209,000	\$	12,500,00



Project name	Examination and Supervisio	on Solution/	MERIT E	nhancemen	ts	
Project sponsor	Office of Business Innovation					
	Office of the Chief Information	on Officer (C	DCIO)			
	·					
Customers/	Internal: Office of Examination	on and Insur	ance (E&I),	, ONES, All	Field Progr	am
beneficiaries	Offices, OCIO, CURE, OHR,					
	External: Credit Unions, State	Supervisor	y Authoritie	es (SSAs)		
	·					
Budget	\$ in thousands	2024	2025	2026	2027	2028
	Acquisition	\$540	\$1,771	\$576	\$1,600	\$1,600
	Operations and Maintenance	\$11,944	\$9,358	\$10,904	\$12,427	\$12,604
	SIF	\$216	\$216	TBD	TBD	TBD
					•	•
Link to NCUA	Strategic Goal 1: Ensure a Saf	e and Sound	d Credit Un	ion System.	Examinatio	n and
strategic goals	Supervision Solutions (ESS) t	ools will en	able credit	union exami	ners to fulfi	ll NCUA
0 0	strategic objective 1.2, "provid	de high-qual	lity and effi	cient superv	ision," by p	roviding a
	more effective and secure example	mination too	ol.	-		_
	Strategic Goal 3: Maximize on	ganizationa	<u>l performar</u>	nce to enable	e mission su	ccess.
	ESS will enable credit union e	examiners to	perform th	eir work mo	ore efficientl	y, helping
	the NCUA achieve strategic o	bjective 3.2	, "deliver a	n efficient of	ganizationa	l design
	supported by improved busine	ess processes	s and innov	ation."		
Detailed project	In addition to on-going operat	ions mainter	nance, the 2	2025 capital	investment	will focus
description	on upgrading the MERIT syst	em platform	to take adv	vantage of se	ecurity impr	ovements,
-	a streamlined interface and ne	w record ma	anagement	capability; p	artnering wi	ith E&I to
	modify the Information Securi	ity Examina	tion progra	m toolbox to	o generate fi	les that
	can be imported into MERIT,	•			-	
	supporting OCIO with the imp					
	new reports via NCUA Conne		e	~		•



	Cloud Migration &	x Modernizat	ion			
	1					
Project sponsor	OCIO					
Customers/ beneficiaries	All internal and exte	ernal users of	NCUA software	e products.		
Budget	\$ in thousands	2024	2025	2026	2027	2028
	Acquisition	\$0	\$1,300	\$2,806	\$3,100	\$1,000
	Operations and Maintenance	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$406	\$3,506
	supported by secure and optimizing exist cloud-based environ	ting agency ap			•	· ·



Project name	Network Access Contro	l						
Project sponsor	OCIO							
Customers/	Internal: All NCUA							
beneficiaries								
Budget	\$ in thousands	2024	2025	2026	2027	2028		
	Acquisition	\$0	\$1,050	TBD	TBD	TBD		
	Operations and	\$0	TBD	TBD	TBD	TBD		
	Maintenance							
Link to NCUA	Strategic Goal 3: Maxim	ize organizati	onal performa	nce to enabl	e mission su	Iccess.		
strategic goals	This capital investment s	upports strate	gic objective (3.2, to "deliv	ver improved	l business		
	processes supported by secure, innovative, and reliable technology solutions and data"							
	by identifying and imple	menting servi	ce improveme	ents to replac	e end-of-life	e and		
	unsupported systems cur	rently in place	e at the NCUA	. This inves	tment will in	nplement		
	more secure and user-enl	nanced service	es that will rec	luce the imp	act of curren	nt services		
	that present a higher risk	of vulnerabili	ities.					
Detailed project	This project will strength	en the NCUA	's network se	curity by au	tomating and	d		
description	enhancing security patch	management	and scanning	functions fo	or users conn	ected to		
	the agency's networks. In	n addition, thi	s project will	integrate the	NCUA's fit	rewall		
	services within the overa	ll network inf	rastructure an	d with the ne	ew patch and	d scanning		
	functionality.				-	-		



Project name	Executive Order on Improvi	ing the Nati	ion's Cyber	security				
Project sponsor	OCIO							
Customers/	Internal: All NCUA							
beneficiaries	External: All Credit Unions							
Budget	\$ in thousands 2024 2025 2026 2027* 2028*							
	Acquisition	\$2,408	\$850	\$250	TBD	TBD		
	Operations and Maintenance \$0 \$0 \$536 \$825							
	027 and beyond are dependent on guid				Budget and the	e		
	structure Security Agency related to the							
Link to NCUA	Strategic Goal 3: Maximize on	ganizationa	<u>l performan</u>	<u>ce to enable</u>	e mission su	ccess. This		
strategic goals	multi-year capital investment	supports stra	ategic objec	tive 3.2, to '	"deliver an e	efficient		
	organizational design support	ed by impro	ved busines	s processes	and innovat	ion" by		
	enabling compliance with EO	14208, Imp	roving the N	lation's Cyl	bersecurity.			
Detailed project	The purpose of this capital inv	vestment is t	o ensure that	t the NCUA	A complies v	vith EO		
description	14208, Improving the Nation'	s Cybersecu	rity. The pro	oject will er	able the app	propriate		
-	applications to use Multi-Fact		<i>v</i> 1	•		1		
	Risk Management best practic							
	NCUA's infrastructure and ap	· •						
	rie erre erne ennaber actuare und up	r						



Project name	Information Technology	Infrastructu	re, Platform	and Securit	y Refresh	
Project sponsor	OCIO					
Customers/	Internal: All NCUA					
beneficiaries						
Budget	\$ in thousands	2024	2025	2026	2027	2028
C	Acquisition	\$1,294	\$775	TBD	TBD	TBD
	Operations &	\$1,068	TBD	TBD	TBD	TBD
	Maintenance					
Link to NCUA	Strategic Goal 3: Maximiz	-	-			
strategic goals	capital investment will hel	-				
	improved business process		•			
	solutions and data" by rep	-				• •
	at the NCUA. This investr		isk to agency	y systems by	implementi	ng more
	secure and user enhanced	services.				
Detailed music -4	This and sat will all 41.				1	1
Detailed project	This project will allow the			-		-
description	well as infrastructure com	-		•		-
	by improving system avail		•	• •		-
	infrastructure, hardware, a	-		s required to	inigrate and	i narden
	the IT services for product	lion readiness.				



Project name	Performance Management S	ystem						
Project sponsor	Office of Human Resources							
	OCIO							
Customers/	Internal: All NCUA Offices							
beneficiaries								
Budget	\$ in thousands	2024	2025	2026	2027	2028		
	Acquisition	\$0	\$750	\$0	\$0	\$0		
	Operations and Maintenance	\$0	\$0	\$136	\$136	\$136		
Link to NCUA strategic goals	Strategic Goal 3: Maximize organizational performance to enable mission s Performance Management System (PMS) replacement project will assist all employees to perform their work more effectively and efficiently, supportin objective 3.2, "deliver an efficient organizational design supported by impro- business processes and innovation." The new PMS will be the NCUA's prin for maintaining performance plans and annual performance evaluations.							
Detailed project	This capital investment will far	cilitate the	employee p	erformance	managemen	t program		
description	for all NCUA employees by su					1 0		
-	performance plans and evaluat					verall		
	management of over 350 perfo	rmance pla	an templates					



Project name	Enterprise Laptop Refresh							
Project sponsor	OCIO							
Customers/ beneficiaries	Internal: All NCUA							
Budget	\$ in thousands	2024	2025	2026	2027	2028		
	Acquisition	\$0	\$550	\$4,385	\$150	\$150		
	Operations & Maintenance	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0		
strategic goals	2025–26 Enterprise Laptop Refresh project will help employees perform their work more effectively, efficiently, and securely, supporting strategic objective 3.2, "delive improved business processes supported by secure, innovative, and reliable technolog solutions and data." Upgraded hardware provides staff with new functionality and enhanced security features that improve user productivity, increase mobile functionality, and lower IT administrative costs due to a decreased need for support services.							
Detailed project description	The purpose of this capital inv efficiency, and security by pro processing power and speed to mobility features like reduced features to better combat evolv for the selection of new, stand their operating system with the Future year costs are associate peripherals. By including hard contract (and following a 3-ye pace with changes in workstat manner.	oviding the orun multip weight and ving cyber t ard laptop o e NCUA's o ed with the o ware and o ar replacem	NCUA staff le application longer batt hreats. In 2 configuration existing bus expected purperating sys- ment lifecycl	f with laptop ons more eff ery life, and 025, capital ns and testin iness applica rchase of ado stem support e), the NCU	s that offer ectively, en advanced s funding wil g of those l ations. ditional lapt in the purch A will be al	improved hanced ecurity l provide aptops and tops and hase ble to keep		



Project name	Onboarding/Offboarding Solution and Personnel Security Case Management System							
Project sponsor	Office of Continuity and Security Management OCIO							
Customers/ beneficiaries	Internal: All NCUA							
Budget	\$ in thousands	2024	2025	2026	2027	2028		
C	Acquisition	\$630*	\$300	\$0	\$0	\$0		
	Operations and Maintenance	\$0	\$315	\$331	\$348	\$365		
*Excludes a \$100K rep	programming approved in 2024.							
Link to NCUA	Strategic Goal 3: Maximize or	ganizationa	l performan	ce to enable	e mission su	ccess.		
strategic goals	Specifically, this capital investment will help achieve strategic objective 3.2 to, "deliver							
	improved business processes supported by secure, innovative, and reliable technology							
	solutions and data."							
Detailed project description	The purpose of this project is the for NCUA in compliance with ODNI and OPM. The NCUA of and contractor onboarding and combination of legacy SharePosystem, and the USAStaffing of This capital investment will define and offboarding data for both to by the ODNI and OPM.	the Trustee currently la l offboardin oint applica recruitment eploy a cent	l Workforce cks a centra g data. Inste tions, the H system to tr ralized IT se	2.0 directive lized system ead, the age RLinks emp rack and ma olution to m	ve promulga n to manage ncy relies up ployee timel nage this in naintain onb	tted by the employee oon a keeping formation. oarding		



Project name	MARS and CUSO Developm	nent and R	Reports					
Project sponsor	Office of Examination and Insurance							
	1							
Customers/	Internal: All NCUA							
beneficiaries	External: SSAs, Credit unions	, CUSOs, o	credit union le	eagues, vend	ors, and cor	sumers		
		T			1			
Budget	\$ in thousands	2024	2025	2026	2027	2028		
	Acquisition	\$0	\$260	\$0	\$0	\$0		
	Operations and Maintenance	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0		
strategic goals	protects consumers. This capit effective and efficient supervi- examination and supervision p example, MARS development examination resource planning examiner time to guide resour <u>Strategic Goal 3: Maximize on</u> capital investment also suppor processes supported by secure by enhancing existing systems cycles, regulatory changes, inc budget process.	sion," by corrections of the process of the process of the processes of the processes of the planning the strategic of the st	ollecting and ciently using the agency's and improve g. <u>al performanc</u> objective 3.2 e, and reliable n-time schedu	reporting da improved te management ments in TM <u>ce to enable r</u> 2, "deliver in e technology ile to match	ta that support chnology. F t of the annu IS accurated <u>mission succ</u> proved bus y solutions a agency data	corts the for al y capture <u>cess</u> . This iness nd data" collection		
Detailed project description	This project will fund short-te CUSO Reports, such as the CU development in support of red specialties, and new superviso	USO Regis istricting, 1	try Online for new work cod	rm and realig	gn MARS ai	nd TMS		



Project name	Generative AI Licensing					
Project sponsor	OCIO					
Customers/	Internal: All NCUA					
beneficiaries						
Budget*	\$ in thousands	2024	2025	2026	2027	2028
	Acquisition	\$0	\$25	\$0	\$0	\$0
	Operations & Maintenance	\$0	\$0	\$662	\$713	\$766
e	ounts fund initial licenses to pilot and te	st the use of A	I tools at the N	NCUA. Future	year budget a	mounts
reflect assumed deployr	ment of the tool to the agency.					
Link to NCUA	Strategic Goal 3: Maximize on	ganization	al performan	ce to enable	e mission su	ccess.
strategic goals	This capital project will suppo	ort strategic	objective 3.2	, "deliver in	nproved busi	ness
	processes supported by secure,	innovative,	and reliable	technology s	solutions and	l data" by
	leveraging the power of next-g	generation A	AI to increas	e individual	and organiz	zational
	performance.				-	
Detailed project	This capital investment will fu	und a pilot p	program to to	est the capal	oility of an A	AI tool for
description	possible development across t		-	1	-	



Project name	System Updates for Significant Regulatory Changes							
Project sponsor	OCIO							
Customers/	Internal: Various NCUA office		1					
beneficiaries	External: Credit Unions, Credi	t Union Me	embers, SSA	As				
Budget	\$ in thousands	2024	2025	2026	2027	2028		
C	Acquisition	\$0	\$300	\$300	\$300	\$300		
	Operations and Maintenance	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0		
	defect, and secure applications that support examination and supervision functions.Strategic Goal 3: Maximize organizational performance to enable mission success.This investment also supports strategic objective 3.2, to "deliver improved businessprocesses supported by secure, innovative, and reliable technology solutions and data."							
	This investment also supports	strategic ob	ojective 3.2,	to "deliver i	improved bu	<u>ccess</u> . 1siness		



Project name	CURE Process Automation							
Project sponsor	Office of Credit Union Resources and Expansion							
	Office of the Chief Information	Officer						
Customers/	Internal: CURE and Regional Staff							
beneficiaries	External: All credit unions and organizing groups							
Budget	\$ in thousands	2024	2025	2026	2027	2028		
	Acquisition	\$1,100	\$1,000	\$0	\$0	\$0		
	Operations and Maintenance	\$0	\$0	TBD	TBD	TBD		
Link to NCUA	Strategic Goal 2: Improve the	financial we	ll-being of i	ndividuals a	and commur	nities		
strategic goals	through access to affordable and equitable financial products and services. This capital							
	investment will develop an external-facing portal for organizing groups to submit							
	charter applications for new credit unions. This project directly supports the strategic							
	goal by making it easier for sta	keholders to	o charter nev	v credit uni	ons, which v	will		
	provide financial products and	services to	additional gi	roups and e	xpanded geo	ographic		
	areas.							
Detailed project	This multi-year process automa	ation projec	t will impler	nent an exte	ernal-facing	portal for		
description	organizing groups to submit th	eir new cha	rter applicati	ons. The po	ortal is expe	cted to		
	include forms for submission of information and data, the ability to upload supporting							
	files, and a visible timeline so that applicants can track the status of their submission. In							
	addition, the project will incorporate the NCUA's current tool for submitting field of							
	membership expansion requests, CAPRIS, and the agency's document file and							
	workflow system, MAGIC.		5	-				



Project name	Off-Site Monitoring Project							
Project sponsor	Office of Examination and Ins	urance						
Customers/	Internal: All NCUA							
beneficiaries								
			2025	2026	2025	2020		
Budget	\$ in thousands	2024	2025	2026	2027	2028		
	Acquisition	\$0	\$250	TBD	TBD	TBD		
	Operations and Maintenance	\$0	\$0	TBD	TBD	TBD		
Link to NCUA	Strategic Goal 3: Maximize or	ganizationa	ul performan	ce to enable	e mission suc	ccess.		
strategic goals	The off-site monitoring project	t will impro	ove the agen	cy's ability	to gather an	d review		
	information in a timely manner	r while red	ucing the ne	eded resour	ces. This wi	ll improve		
	the efficiency of the NCUA's	orimary wo	ork activities	in support of	of NCUA st	rategic		
	objective 3.2, "deliver improve	-				-		
	and reliable technology solution		1	11 2	,			
Detailed project	The goal of this investment is	to reduce b	urdens on ex	kamination s	staff during	off-site		
description	monitoring while streamlining				-			
	risks to the Share Insurance Fu	•			56	8		



Project name	Office of National E Resources	xamination ar	nd Supervisi	ion (ONES) D	edicated Com	puting			
			~ · ·						
Project sponsor	Office of National Ex	amination and	Supervision						
Customers/	Internal: ONES, Regi	Internal: ONES, Regional Large Credit Union Program examinations							
beneficiaries	External: Credit Unions with greater than \$10 billion in assets								
Budget	\$ in thousands	2027	2028						
U	Acquisition	\$0	\$48	\$0	\$0	\$0			
	Operations and	\$0	\$0	\$48-\$77	\$48-\$77	\$48-\$77			
	Maintenance								
	1								
Link to NCUA	Strategic Goal 1: Ens								
strategic goals	protects consumers.								
	effective and efficien	1	•	U 1 U	· · · · ·	ports the			
	examination and supe	ervision process	s efficiently	using improved	d technology.				
	Strategic Goal 3: Max	vimize organiz	ntional perfo	rmance to enal	le mission su	acess This			
	capital investment wi		-						
	processes supported b	-	U .		-				
	processes supported t	y secure, milo	, all v C, all a 1		55 Solutions	una auta.			
Detailed project	This capital investme	nt will provide	dedicated co	omputing resou	irces to suppor	rt the ONES			
description	data quality and assur	-		1 0					
	the large credit union			1 1	-	U			



Central Office Maintenance and Repair					
-					
Office of the Chief Financial C	Officer				
1	•	J			
External: All NCUA headquar	ters buildin	g visitors			
					2028
					\$425
Operations and Maintenance	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0
Strategic Goal 3: Maximize organizational performance to enable mission success. Investments in minor construction and maintenance projects will improve facility operations and building efficiency, safety, and functionality at the NCUA's Central Office building. The Central Office facility was built in 1993. The average life span of building components is between 20–25 years. Aged, outdated and failing building components and systems pose a threat to the performance of the NCUA mission. Collectively these investments will maximize organizational performance and enable mission success, for example, by improving building accessibility for NCUA employees and the public through installation of Americans with Disability Act-					
1 1	-		-		
L 2025 11 11	11	1 1 0 1		0 1	1
-	-		-	• •	
		-	-	-	
	•		-		-
-				-	-
			5-, una a me		
	Office of the Chief Financial C Internal: All NCUA headquart External: All NCUA headquart \$ in thousands Acquisition Operations and Maintenance Strategic Goal 3: Maximize or Investments in minor construct operations and building efficie Office building. The Central O building components is betwee components and systems pose Collectively these investments mission success, for example, I employees and the public throw compliant entryways; conservi efficient devices and equipmer and interior finishes. In 2025, this capital investmen projects. Several of these proje approach: building automation replacement; and office and co repairs, waterproofing within the	Office of the Chief Financial Officer Internal: All NCUA headquarters building External: All NCUA headquarters building S in thousands 2024 Acquisition \$477 Operations and Maintenance \$0 Strategic Goal 3: Maximize organizational Investments in minor construction and mark operations and building efficiency, safety Office building. The Central Office facility building components is between 20–25 year components and systems pose a threat to a collectively these investments will maximal mission success, for example, by improvi employees and the public through installar compliant entryways; conserving natural is efficient devices and equipment; and protection and interior finishes. In 2025, this capital investment will provide and interior finishes. In 2025, this capital investment will provide and interior finishes. In 2025, this capital investment will provide and interior finishes.	Office of the Chief Financial Officer Internal: All NCUA headquarters building occupants External: All NCUA headquarters building visitors \$ in thousands 2024 2025 Acquisition \$477 \$480 Operations and Maintenance \$0 \$0 Strategic Goal 3: Maximize organizational performant Investments in minor construction and maintenance properations and building efficiency, safety, and function Office building. The Central Office facility was built building components is between 20–25 years. Aged, and components and systems pose a threat to the performant Collectively these investments will maximize organizational mission success, for example, by improving building employees and the public through installation of Ameter compliant entryways; conserving natural resources the efficient devices and equipment; and protecting and read interior finishes. In 2025, this capital investment will provide the fund projects. Several of these projects are multi-year in na approach: building automation and system controls re- replacement; and office and common area painting. Compliant entry and protecting and re- advices and equipment and system controls re- replacement; and office and common area painting.	Office of the Chief Financial Officer Internal: All NCUA headquarters building occupants External: All NCUA headquarters building visitors \$\u03c8 in thousands 2024 2025 2026 Acquisition \$\u03c8477 \$\u03c8480 \$\u03c8450 Operations and Maintenance \$\u03c80 \$\u03c80 \$\u03c80 Strategic Goal 3: Maximize organizational performance to enable Investments in minor construction and maintenance projects will operations and building efficiency, safety, and functionality at the Office building. The Central Office facility was built in 1993. Th building components is between 20–25 years. Aged, outdated and components and systems pose a threat to the performance of the I Collectively these investments will maximize organizational perf mission success, for example, by improving building accessibility employees and the public through installation of Americans with compliant entryways; conserving natural resources through instal efficient devices and equipment; and protecting and maintaining and interior finishes. In 2025, this capital investment will provide the funding necessar projects. Several of these projects are multi-year in nature, requir approach: building automation and system controls replacement; replacement; and office and common area painting. Other project repairs, waterproofing within the Central Office garage, and a more several of the several of the several office garage, and a more several office	Office of the Chief Financial Officer Internal: All NCUA headquarters building occupants External: All NCUA headquarters building visitors \$ in thousands 2024 2025 2026 2027 Acquisition \$477 \$480 \$450 \$450 Operations and Maintenance \$0 \$0 \$0 \$0 Strategic Goal 3: Maximize organizational performance to enable mission sul Investments in minor construction and maintenance projects will improve fac operations and building efficiency, safety, and functionality at the NCUA's C Office building. The Central Office facility was built in 1993. The average lift building components is between 20–25 years. Aged, outdated and failing buil components and systems pose a threat to the performance of the NCUA miss Collectively these investments will maximize organizational performance and mission success, for example, by improving building accessibility for NCUA employees and the public through installation of Americans with Disability A compliant entryways; conserving natural resources through installation of end efficient devices and equipment; and protecting and maintaining the building and interior finishes. In 2025, this capital investment will provide the funding necessary for six pla projects. Several of these projects are multi-year in nature, requiring an incre approach: building automation and system controls replacement; roof drain re replacement; and office and common area painting. Other projects include pl repairs, waterproofing within the Central Office garage, and a modest amoun



Appendix C: Glossary of Terms and Acronyms

A

Asset Management and Assistance Center (AMAC): The office at the NCUA responsible for conducting credit union liquidations and performing management and recovery of assets. Additionally, this office supports the NCUA's regional offices' review of large complex loan portfolios and actual or potential bond claims.

Automated Cybersecurity Evaluation Toolbox (ACET): The NCUA's ACET application provides credit unions the capability to conduct a maturity assessment aligned with the FFIEC's Cybersecurity Assessment Tool. Using the assessment within the toolbox allows institutions of all sizes to easily determine and measure their own cybersecurity preparedness over time.

Automated Integrated Regulatory Examination System (AIRES): AIRES is the NCUA's legacy examination system, which was replaced by MERIT.

С

CAMELS: The NCUA's composite CAMELS rating consists of an assessment of a credit union's <u>Capital</u> adequacy, <u>Asset quality</u>, <u>Management</u>, <u>Earnings</u>, <u>Liquidity</u> risk, and <u>Sensitivity</u> to market risk.

Central Liquidity Facility (CLF): The CLF is a mixed-ownership government corporation that serves as a source for emergency funding for consumer credit unions and corporate credit unions that join the facility.

Credit Union Resources and Expansion (CURE): The NCUA's Office of Credit Union Resources and Expansion supports credit union growth and development. CURE assists low-income and minority credit unions, as well as all credit unions seeking assistance with chartering, charter conversions, bylaw amendments, field-of-membership expansion requests and low-income designations. CURE also provides access to online training and resources and to grants and loans through the Community Development Revolving Loan Fund.

E

Office of Examination and Insurance (E&I): The office at the NCUA responsible for supervision programs, which ensure the safety and soundness of the credit union system and that manages risk to the Share Insurance Fund.



F

Federal Credit Union: A federal credit union is a member-owned and controlled, not-for-profit, cooperative financial institution chartered by the NCUA and formed to provide its members with affordable and safe financial services.

Federal Information Security Modernization Act: A federal statute enacted in 2014 that enables the government to better respond to cyberattacks on departments and agencies.

Federal Employees Retirement System (FERS): FERS is a defined-benefit retirement plan for civilian employees of the federal government.

Field of Membership: A credit union's field of membership defines who is eligible to join the credit union.

Federally Insured, State-chartered Credit Union (FISCU): A FISCU is a member-owned and controlled, not-for-profit, cooperative financial institution chartered by the state in which it is located. FISCUs are insured by the NCUA and supervised jointly with the state supervisory authority that chartered them.

I

Information Security Examination (ISE): A risk-focused approach to examine credit unions' information security focused on areas of material current or potential risk relevant to each credit union's unique business model.

Μ

Modern Examination and Risk Identification Tool (MERIT) examination system: MERIT is the NCUA's new web-based examination platform that replaced AIRES.

Minority Deposit Institution (MDI): By law, MDI describes a federally insured credit union in which a majority of its current members, its board of directors, and the community it services, as designated in its charter, fall within any of the eligible minority groups described in Section 308 of the Financial Institutions Reform, Recovery and Enforcement Act of 1989.³⁵

³⁵ See <u>https://www.federalreserve.gov/publications/2013-preserving-minority-depository-institutions-section-308-firrea.htm</u>



0

Office of the Chief Information Officer (OCIO): The office at the NCUA responsible for establishing the organization's enterprise IT vision, security strategy, roadmap and related policies and management controls.

Office of Consumer Financial Protection (OCFP): The office at the NCUA responsible for the consumer financial literacy efforts, the NCUA's Consumer Assistance Center, consumer financial protection compliance policy and rulemaking, fair lending examinations, interagency coordination on consumer financial protection compliance matters, and the agency's consumer-focused website <u>MyCreditUnion.gov</u>.

Office of the Inspector General (OIG): The office at the NCUA responsible for promoting the economy, efficiency, and effectiveness of NCUA programs and operations, and detects and deters fraud, waste and abuse, thereby supporting the NCUA's mission of monitoring and promoting safe and sound federally insured credit unions. OIG conducts independent audits, investigations, and other activities, and keeps the NCUA Board and U.S. Congress fully and currently informed of its work.

Office of Management and Budget (OMB): An agency within the Executive Office of the President responsible for overseeing the performance of federal agencies and administering the federal budget.

Office of National Examinations and Supervision (ONES): The office at the NCUA responsible for overseeing the examination and supervision issues related to consumer credit unions with assets greater than \$15 billion and all corporate credit unions.

U.S. Office of Personnel Management (OPM): An agency responsible for human resources matters and personnel policy for the federal government.

Overhead Transfer Rate (OTR): The share of the NCUA's operating and capital budgets that comes from the Share Insurance Fund. The OTR represents the insurance-related costs that are paid for out of the Share Insurance Fund.